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A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



THE OFFERING

Up to $535,000
Keezel, Inc.

Unsecured Subordinated Convertible Promissory Notes convertible into shares of
Series B Nonvoting Common Stock

This Form C (including the cover page and all exhibits attached hereto, the "Form C")
is being furnished by Keezel, Inc., a Delaware Corporation (the "Company," as well as
references to "we," "us," or "our"), to prospective investors for the sole purpose of
providing certain information about a potential investment in Unsecured
Subordinated Convertible Promissory Notes of the Company (the "Securities” or
"Notes") that are convertible into shares of Series B Nonvoting Common Stock of the
Company.

Purchasers of Securities are sometimes referred to herein as "Purchasers” or "you."

We are offering up to $535,000 principal amount of our Notes on a "best efforts” basis
in the offering of Securities described in this Form C (this "Offering"). The Offering
may continue until the earlier of the sixtieth (60th) day after the Offering commences
(which date may be extended at our option) or the date when all the Notes have been
sold. The Notes will be priced at $1.00 per Note. If we raise more than the maximum
offering amount in this offering under Regulation Crowdfunding (also referred to as
"Regulation CF"), we may conduct an offering under

Regulation D for subscribers who are accredited, investors.

Our target offering amount under Regulation CF is $10,000. We will accept
investments in excess of the target amount up to $535,000. Specifically, if we reach
the target offering amount of

$1 0,000, we may conduct the first of multiple closings of the offering early if we
provide notice about the new offering deadline at least five business days prior to such
new offering deadline (absent a material change that would require an extension of
the offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment). Oversubscriptions
will be allocated as we determine.

We will accept investments in excess of the target amount up to $535,000. However,
we have previously raised money under Regulation CF, which has limits on the
amount we may raise in any I 2-month period. We will only accept commitments only
to the extent the amount committed remains below the applicable limit for the raise at
any given time.

There is currently no trading market for our Notes and we cannot guarantee that such



a trading market for our Notes will ever exist. Please see "The Offering and the
Securities--Restrictions on Transfer. " The offer made hereby is subject to
modification, prior sale and withdrawal at any time.

The rights and obligations of the holders of Securities of the Company are set forth
below in the section entitled "The Offering and the Securities--The Securities". In
order to purchase Securities, a prospective investor must complete and execute an
Investment Agreement.

Purchases or "Subscriptions” may be accepted or rejected by the Company, in its sole
and absolute discretion. The Company has the right to cancel or rescind its offer to
sell the Securities at any time and for any reason.

The Offering is being made through StartEngine Capital LLC as the intermediary (the
"Intermediary”). The Intermediary will be entitled to receive a cash fee equal to 6% of
the total purchase price for Securities sold to Purchasers in the Offering.

Price to Purchasers Service Fees and Net Proceeds
Commissions (1)

Minimum $250.00 $15.00 $235.00
individual Purchase

Amount

Aggregate $10,000.00 $600.00 $9,400.00
Minimum

Offering Amount

Aggregate $535,000.00 $32,100.00 $ 502,900.00
Maximum

Offering Amount

Does not include other expenses of the Offering, including professional fees of the
Company's advisors such as attorneys and accountants, costs of securities
compliance,transfer agent fees and escrow fees.

Multiple Closings

If we reach the target offering amount prior to the offering deadline, we may conduct
the first of multiple closings of the offering early, if we provide notice about the new
offering deadline at least five business days prior (absent a material change that
would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the investment
commitment).

THE COMPANY AND ITS BUSINESS

The company's business



THE COMPANY AND ITS BUSINESS

The company's business Description of the Business

The Company was formed in April 2017 to market, sell and distribute, exclusively in
the North American countries of the United States, Canada and Mexico, security
services and portable, one-button internet encryption devices that are developed and
manufactured by its parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, for the Company
pursuant to an Intellectual Property License and Reseller Agreement. The Company
plans to sell directly to consumers and businesses, including telecom providers, cable
providers, vpn providers and information security providers. The Company also may
sell such security services and devices indirectly through distributors.

Business Plan

In order to execute on its sales strategy for North America, the Company plans to hire
an experienced Vice President of Sales in the United States. The Company aims to sell
Keezel products and services through three principal sales channels:

e The online store at www.keezel.us

The Company expects to generate online sales through the use of a data driven
approach, including using social media platforms to find new potential customers.
The Company plans to create a referral and affiliate program to help reach higher
sales numbers.

e Retailers and e-tailers

The Company plans to hire a retail consulting agency with experience in bringing
similar products into retail and e-tail stores. With their help, the Company plans to
grow the number of sales channels and the volume per channel.

e Reseller partnerships with Telecom providers, Cable providers, VPN providers,
Information Security providers, and other partners such as in the hospitality
industry

The Company plans to form relationships with various partners with the goal of
having access to a wider customer base.

Intellectual Property License and Reseller Agreement

Keezel Netherlands has granted to Keezel, Inc. the following exclusive rights in the



United States, Canada and Mexico: (a) the right to sell proprietary hardware security
(with embedded software) devices and related services and (b) a license to exercise
intellectual property rights in conjunction with distributing and selling such devices
and services.

History of the Business

The Company has started to sell products and services to the public in 2017. The
Company’s parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, has sold and delivered more than
4000 Keezel devices in 2017 to customers who backed the product through Keezel
Netherlands’ crowdfunding and pre-orders on Keezel Netherlands’ website.

Competition

The Company's primary competitors are other internet security product, services and
software companies.

We operate in a highly competitive and rapidly changing global marketplace and
compete with a variety of organizations that offer products and services competitive
with those we offer. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the industries
in which we compete include: skills and capabilities of people; technical and industry
expertise; innovative service and product offerings; ability to add business value and
improve performance; reputation and client references; contractual terms, including
competitive pricing; ability to deliver results reliably and on a timely basis; scope of
services; service delivery approach; quality of services and solutions; availability of
appropriate resources; and global and scale, including level of presence in key
emerging markets.

Supply Chain and Customer Base

The Company acquires Keezel products and services from its parent corporation,
Keezel Netherlands. Keezel Netherlands currently manufactures the Keezel product in
the Shenzhen area in China. Keezel Netherlands has engaged Concentric Consulting to
optimize the supply chain and provide quality assurance.

The Company sells products and services to consumers and businesses through direct
sales on its website and in retail stores and plans to sell indirectly through
partnerships.

Intellectual Property and Research and Development

Pursuant to the Intellectual Property License and Reseller Agreement between us and
Keezel Netherlands, we have rights to use intellectual property owned by Keezel
Netherlands, including issued and pending patents and trademarks.



Real Property

The Company does not own or lease any real property, but uses office space of an
incubator.

Governmental/Regulatory Approval and Compliance

Our industry is subject to many regulations in the various countries where we intend
to distribute the Keezel product and services. Non-compliance with laws and
regulations could materially adversely affect our business. Such regulation could harm
our business by limiting the size of the potential market for the product and services
and by requiring additional differentiation between products and services for different
countries to address varying regulations. If our Company and our advisors do not
successfully respond to these regulations, sales may decrease and our business may
suffer. Generally, any failure of the Company to comply with laws and regulatory
requirements applicable to our business may, among other things, limit our ability to
generate revenue, and, in addition, could subject us to higher costs, damages, class
action lawsuits, administrative enforcement actions, and civil and criminal liability.

Our business does not have a direct environmental impact.
Litigation
None.

The team

Officers and directors

Aike Miiller Co-founder / CEO (2014 - Present)
Friso Schmid Co-founder (2014 - Present)

Aike Miiller

Aike Miller is founding father of the Keezel. He is a network security expert
specialized in cybersecurity whose career in information management and IT security
began as an M&A IT expert at PwC. He went on to co-found a government-contract
consulting firm specializing in automated assurance. Aike developed Keezel as a
solution to security issues he encountered while working at client locations and on the
go. In his spare time he hacks solutions for his smart home. Aike has been acting
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of Keezel from April 2017 - Present.

Friso Schmid

Friso Schmid is co-founder and the business strategist of Keezel. He started his career
as an IT consultant at Capgemini. He went on to join a government-contract
consulting firm where he met and worked with Aike. Friso has worked for over 10 years



in IT, startups and online marketing. From 2013 - 2015 Friso helped co-found online
job site Jobsy. Most recently, Friso and Aike rejoined in 2013 to work on the early
version of Keezel. Friso has been acting Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Secretary
and Director of Keezel from April 2017 - Present.

Number of Employees: 2
Related party transactions

From time to time the Company may engage in transactions with related persons.
Related persons are defined as any director or officer of the Company; any person who
is the beneficial owner of 10 percent or more of the Company's outstanding voting
equity securities, calculated on the basis of voting power; any promoter of the
Company; any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons or an entity
controlled by any such person or persons. The Company has conducted the following
transactions with related persons: Securities The Company sold 7,100,000 shares of its
Series A Voting Common Stock to its parent corporation, AvocadoNinja, BV, for an
aggregate purchase price of $710. Messrs. Miiller and Schmid own a controlling
interest in AvocadoNinja, BV. Contracts Keezel Netherlands has granted to Keezel,
Inc. the following exclusive rights in the United States, Canada and Mexico: (a) the
right to sell proprietary hardware security (with embedded software) devices and
related services and (b) a license to exercise intellectual property rights in conjunction
with distributing and selling such devices and services. Under this arrangement,
Keezel, Inc. will pay Keezel Netherlands a percentage fee based on product gross
revenue plus a fixed fee per hardware unit sold by Keezel, Inc., subject to adjustment
after annual review. For example, in the first year, based on a selling price of $600 for
the most popular product, the Keezel Lifelong, the total fee would be $210 for each
such product sold. The Company may loan the proceeds from this Offering to its
parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, at an interest rate of 5% per annum, to
facilitate inventory financing of Keezel Netherlands for Keezel products. Messrs.
Miiller and Schmid own a controlling interest in AvocadoNinja, BV (Keezel
Netherlands).

RISK FACTORS
These are the principal risks that related to the company and its business:

e RISK FACTORS These are the principal risks that related to the company and its
business: A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any
funds in this Offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment. In
making an investment decision, Purchasers must rely on their own examination
of the Company and the terms of the Offering, including the merits and risks
involved. These Securities have not been recommended or approved by any
federal or state securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore,
these authorities have not passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this
document. The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the
merits of any securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass



upon the accuracy or completeness of any offering document or literature. These
securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.S.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent
determination that these securities are exempt from registration. We are a young
company, with limited operating history, and are marketing and selling our first
product and services to a geographically limited area. The Company was formed
in April 2017 and is marketing, selling and distributing its first product and
services to North America. Investment in the Company is highly speculative
because it entails significant risk that we may never become commercially
viable. We will be reliant on our parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, to
manufacture the Keezel product and develop future products and services for us
on a timely basis. Our sales will be geographically limited to the North American
countries of the United States, Canada and Mexico, and we will be prohibited
from selling products or services outside of these of countries due to the fact that
such international sales will be carried out by our parent corporation, Keezel
Netherlands. Accordingly, we will not be able to grow our sales or business
beyond North America. While the funds raised through this Offering will be used
to fund the launch of our sales and marketing of the Keezel product and services
in North America, we may require additional funding after this Offering to grow
operations. We may not be successful in such operations. As a new business, we
may encounter unforeseen expenses, difficulties, complications, delays and
other known and unknown factors. We are subject to all of the risks that are
commonplace among newly-formed businesses and should be considered as a
startup business with significant risk that may face various difficulties typical for
development stage companies. These may include, among others: relatively
limited financial resources; developing new investment opportunities; delays in
reaching projected goals and milestones; competition from larger, more
established companies; and difficulty recruiting and retaining qualified
employees and other personnel. The Company may encounter these and other
difficulties in the future, some of which may be beyond its control. If the
Company is unable to successfully address these difficulties as they arise, the
Company’s future growth and earnings will be negatively affected. The Company
cannot give assurance to prospective investors that its business model and plans
will be successful or that it will successfully address any problems that may
arise. There is substantial doubt about the ability of development stage
companies continue as a going concern. Our future revenue is unpredictable and
is based upon a single initial product. We cannot guarantee that the Keezel
product or any future products will be successfully manufactured and delivered
by our parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, or that our sales of such products
will be profitable. Our business is speculative and dependent upon the
acceptance of the Keezel products and services and the effectiveness of our
marketing program to convince consumers to choose such products and services.
We cannot assure that consumers will accept these products and services or that
we will earn any revenues or profit. Investors may lose their entire investment.
In addition, there is a substantial risk that we may not receive sufficient funding
after this offering to grow operations. It is also difficult to accurately forecast



our revenues and operating results, and they may fluctuate in the future due to a
number of factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, consumer
acceptance of the Keezel products and services, competition from other market
participants, and adverse changes in general economic, industry and regulatory
conditions and requirements. The loss of key personnel, or the inability to attract
talent, could adversely impact our business. Our success is largely dependent on
the retention of certain key personnel, including, but not limited to, our Chief
Executive Officer, President and member of the board of directors, Aike Miiller,
and our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, Secretary and member of the board of
directors, Friso Schmid. Messrs. Miiller and Schmid also serve in management
roles at our parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, and their attention could be
diverted from our company which would harm our business. Our success also
will be dependent on the hiring and retention of sales and marketing personnel.
There are no guarantees that we will find the right type of personnel who will be
able to sell enough of the Keezel products and services. Our ability to raise
sufficient capital may have an impact on our ability to attract and hire the right
talent. The inability to attract or the loss of services of these personnel from our
Company could adversely affect our business, projected sales, revenue and
prospects. Competition for qualified personnel in the internet security industry
is high, and we may have difficulty in hiring and/or retaining necessary
personnel for a variety of reasons, including, without limitation, such
competitive nature. We face significant market competition from larger
competitors. While many new products and services are regularly introduced in
our industry, it is increasingly difficult to produce high-quality products and
services and to predict, prior to completing product development, what products
and services will succeed. Competitors often develop products and services that
could replicate or compete with products and services of competitors, which in
turn hinders growth of a customer base and profitability. Products and services
produced by our competitors may take a larger share of customer spending than
anticipated, which could cause our sales of the Keezel product and services to
fall below expectations. Consumers may lose interest in the Keezel product and
services. If our competitors develop more successful products and services
and/or offer competitive products and services at lower prices, our revenues,
margins and profitability could be impaired. Our competitors include very large
corporations with significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources
than we have. The availability of significant financial resources is a major
competitive factor in the sales and marketing of high-quality products and
services that are ultimately well-received. Our larger competitors may be able to
leverage their greater financial, technical, personnel, and other resources to
finance larger budgets for sales and marketing, and make higher offers to
licensors and developers for commercially desirable products and services as well
as adopt more aggressive pricing policies to develop more commercially
successful products and services. In addition, larger competitors may have
greater leverage with distributors, retailers and other players. If the Keezel
product does not function as consumers expect, it may have a negative impact
on our business and model. If the Keezel product does not function as



consumers expect, our projected sales may suffer and it may negatively impact
our business. Re-developing the product to satisfy consumers could adversely
impact the product and disappoint consumers. Additionally, if consumers do not
find the Keezel product compelling, our projected revenue and sales will
decrease and it will negatively impact our business. Consumers may choose
other products and services and/or technology experts may favor other products
and services, and if consumers do not find the Keezel product and services
compelling then our projected revenue will decline. The security-conscious
consumer base will drive our revenue and success. The internet security industry
is a highly speculative and competitive industry, and consumers and technology
experts may be critical of the Keezel product, services or business practices for a
wide variety of reasons. If consumers choose other products and services and/or
technology experts favor other products and services (whether by any action or
inaction of our company or the Keezel product and services), our projected
revenue and business will decline. In addition, if the Keezel product does not
function as consumers anticipate, if consumers find products and services that
are more satisfying from their perspective, and/or if consumers do not find the
Keezel product and services compelling to their satisfaction, consumers may
choose other products and services (or otherwise elect to just not use the Keezel
product and services), which would have a negative impact on our business.
Many of these factors are subjective and outside of the Company’s control.
Investors may suffer potential loss or dissolution and termination. In the event
of a dissolution or termination of the Company, the proceeds realized from the
liquidation of assets, if any, will be distributed in the priority established by
applicable law, but only after the satisfaction of claims of creditors. Accordingly,
the ability of an investor to recover all or any portion of its investment under
such circumstances will depend on the amount of funds realized and claims to be
satisfied therefrom. Actual results may vary from any projection we present. We
may provide certain projected results of operations to prospective investors in
connection with this offering. Projections are hypothetical and based upon
present factors thought by management to influence our operations. Projections
do not, and cannot, take into account such factors as market fluctuations,
unforeseeable events such as natural disasters, the terms and conditions of any
possible financing, and other possible occurrences that are beyond our ability to
control or even to predict. While management believes that the projections
reflect the possible outcome of our operation and performance, results depicted
in the projections cannot be guaranteed. If general economic conditions decline,
demand for the Keezel product and services could decline. The Keezel product
and services will involve discretionary spending on the part of consumers.
Consumers are generally more willing to make discretionary purchases,
including purchases of a product and services like the Keezel product and
services, during periods in which favorable economic conditions prevail. As a
result, the Keezel product and services will be sensitive to general economic
conditions and economic cycles. A reduction or shift in domestic or
international consumer spending could result in an increase in our selling and
promotional expenses in an effort to offset that reduction, and could have a



material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of
operations, profitability, cash flows and liquidity. Our operating costs are
unpredictable. In addition to general economic conditions and market
fluctuations, significant operating cost increases could adversely affect us due to
numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control. Increases in operating
costs for the Company or the product and services would likely negatively impact
our operating income, and could result in substantially decreased earnings or a
loss from operations. The Company will need more money. The Company might
not sell enough Notes in this Offering to meet its operating needs and fulfill its
plans. Even if it sells all the Notes it is Offering now, it will probably need to
raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t raise such funds, it will fail. Even if
it does make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the Company being worth less, because later
investors might get better terms. If we issue debt that is senior to the Notes,
noteholders’ rights could be impaired, and if we issue additional shares of our
stock, stockholders may experience dilution in their ownership of our company.
We have the right to raise additional capital or incur borrowings from third
parties to finance our business. In the future we may issue more debt or more
shares of our common stock. Consequently, noteholders’ rights could be
impaired and stockholders may experience more dilution in their ownership of
our company in the future. We rely on a single third party to provide the Keezel
products and services essential to the success of our business. We rely on our
parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, to provide the Keezel products and
services for us to market, sell and distribute exclusively in North America
pursuant to an Intellectual Property License and Reseller Agreement. We
purchase these products and services from Keezel Netherlands under a transfer
pricing arrangement that is subject to annual review and could result in an
increase in costs in any given year depending on industry standards and our
business operations. It is possible that Keezel Netherlands will fail to perform its
obligations or will perform them in an unacceptable or untimely manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with
their work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or
no recourse to recover damages for these losses. An increase in transfer pricing
or a disruption in the operations of Keezel Netherlands or its suppliers could
materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your investment could
be adversely impacted by our reliance on Keezel Netherlands and its
performance. Our accountant has included a “going concern” note in its review
report. We may not have enough funds to sustain the business until it becomes
profitable. Even if we raise funds through a crowdfunding round, we may not
accurately anticipate how quickly we may use the funds and if these funds are
sufficient to bring the business to profitability. Our ability to remain in business
is reliant on either generating sufficient cash flows, raising additional capital, or
likely a combination of the two. There is no public market for the securities and
you will have to hold your securities indefinitely, subject only to a private sale to
a qualified counterparty that is exempt from registration, or a registration of
your securities, or a sale of the business. Currently, there is no public or other



trading market for the securities and there is no current intent to create a public
market for the securities. Further, there can be no assurance that the Company
will be able to facilitate a private sale of your securities or that any other market
will develop. Thus, there can be no assurance that you will be able to liquidate
your investment in case of an emergency or if you otherwise desire to do so.
Investment in the Company is of a long-term nature. Accordingly, purchasers of
securities will bear the economic risk of investment for an indefinite period of
time. Marketing costs are volatile and can impact our growth and profitability.
Marketing of the Keezel product and services and the Company can be done
through a variety of outlets, and part of the success of the Keezel product and
services may depend on such marketing efforts. However, it is difficult to predict
which marketing efforts will resonate with certain players. Due to the volatile
nature of marketing costs and the potential need to explore a variety of
marketing efforts, the Company may need to use additional funds for marketing
that could impact growth and projected profitability. We may experience
significant revenue fluctuations due to a variety of factors. We may experience
significant fluctuations in sales of the Keezel product and services due to a
variety of factors, including the timing of the release of the product and services,
the popularity of the product and services, the timing of customer purchases,
fluctuations in the size and rate of growth of consumer demand for the product
and services, and the accuracy of forecasts of consumer demand. Our
expectations of future revenue are based on certain assumptions and
projections, and our operating results will be disproportionately and adversely
affected by a failure of the Keezel product and services to meet sales
expectations. There can be no assurance that we can maintain consistent
revenue, and any significant fluctuations in revenue may reduce the value of
your investment. If the Keezel product contains defects, the product’s and the
Company’s reputation could be harmed and revenue would be adversely
affected. The Keezel product is a complex device. Quality controls to detect
defects are subject to human error, overriding, and reasonable resource
constraints. If quality controls and preventative measures are not effective in
detecting defects in the Keezel product before it is released into the
marketplace, we may have to recall all or a significant number of the Keezel
devices that we deliver to customers. In such an event, that could significantly
harm the business and operating results of the Company and ultimately reduce
the value of your investment. If the Keezel product is compromised by hackers, it
could harm the Company’s customers and damage the Company’s reputation
which would adversely affect revenue. The Keezel device was designed to protect
customers and their data from hacking. If hackers are successful in defeating the
security of the Keezel device, it could harm our customers and damage our
reputation. In such an event, that could significantly harm the business and
operating results of the Company and ultimately reduce the value of your
investment. If the Keezel product infringes on the intellectual property rights of
others, costly litigation would negatively affect sales and our business may
suffer. Infringement claims against the Company or Keezel Netherlands,
whether valid or not, may be time consuming and expensive to defend. Such



claims or litigations could require Keezel Netherlands to stop development,
redesign the product or obtain a license to such intellectual property, or require
us to stop selling the Keezel devices, all of which would be costly and may
increase costs and/or negatively affect revenues received by the Company and
the value of your investment. We cannot be certain that the Keezel device will
not infringe on issued trademarks, patents, and copyright rights of others. Our
Company may be subject to legal proceedings and claims from time to time in
our ordinary course of business arising out of intellectual property rights of
others. These legal proceedings can be very costly, and thus can negatively affect
the results of our operations. There can be no assurance that the Keezel product
will be delivered on the projected timeline or at all, or that the product will
function as intended once delivered. There can be no assurance that Keezel
Netherlands can deliver the Keezel product to us in a timely manner. Investors
must consider that we may not be able to procure from Keezel Netherlands a
device that we can effectively distribute or market in North America. There can
be no assurance that Keezel Netherlands will be able to deliver the product to us
on time or at all, or that the product will function as intended once delivered.
Additionally, if Keezel Netherlands becomes subject to bankruptcy or a similar
proceeding or loses its ability to attract and retain qualified personnel, it may
not be able to sustain operations, continue to supply us with the Keezel product
and services or may develop a product and services that fail to attract consumers,
and consequently our business would be materially adversely affected, as would
the value of your investment. The Notes (and the Series B Nonvoting Common
Stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes) will not be freely tradable until one
year from the initial purchase date. Although the Notes (and the Series B
Nonvoting Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes) may be
tradeable under federal securities law, state securities regulations may apply and
each Purchaser should consult with his or her attorney. You should be aware of
the long-term nature of this investment. There is not now and likely will not be a
public market for the Notes (and the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of the Notes). Because the Notes (and the Series B Nonvoting
Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes) have not been registered
under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state or non-United
States jurisdiction, the Notes (and the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of the Notes) have transfer restrictions and cannot be
resold in the United States except pursuant to Rule 501 of Regulation CF. It is
not currently contemplated that registration under the Securities Act or other
securities laws will be effected. Limitations on the transfer of the Notes (and the
Series B Nonvoting Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes) may
also adversely affect the price that you might be able to obtain for the Notes (and
the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock issuable upon conversion of the Notes) in
a private sale. Purchasers should be aware of the long-term nature of their
investment in the Company. Each Purchaser in this Offering will be required to
represent that it is purchasing the Securities for its own account, for investment
purposes and not with a view to resale or distribution thereof. Neither the
Offering nor the Securities have been registered under federal or state securities



laws, leading to an absence of certain regulation applicable to the Company. No
governmental agency has reviewed or passed upon this Offering, the Company
or any Securities of the Company. The Company also has relied on exemptions
from securities registration requirements under applicable state securities laws.
Investors in the Company, therefore, will not receive any of the benefits that
such registration would otherwise provide. Prospective investors must therefore
assess the adequacy of disclosure and the fairness of the terms of this offering on
their own or in conjunction with their personal advisors. There can be no
Guarantee of Return on Investment. There is no assurance that a Purchaser will
realize a return on its investment or that it will not lose its entire investment.
For this reason, each Purchaser should read the Form C and all Exhibits carefully
and should consult with its own attorney and business advisor prior to making
any investment decision. The Company has the right to extend the Offering
deadline. The Company may extend the Offering deadline beyond what is
currently stated herein. This means that your investment may continue to be
held in escrow while the Company attempts to raise at least the Minimum
Amount even after the Offering deadline stated herein is reached. Your
investment will not be accruing interest during this time and will simply be held
until such time as the new Offering deadline is reached without the Company
receiving the Minimum Amount, at which time it will be returned to you without
interest or deduction, or the Company receives the Minimum Amount, at which
time it will be released to the Company to be used as set forth herein. In
addition, even though funds may be released to the Company in multiple
closings, the Notes will not be issued and distributed to you until the Offering
deadline and your investment will not begin accruing interest until the issuance
date of such Notes. There is no present market for the Securities and we have
arbitrarily set the price and the conversion formula. We have arbitrarily set the
price of the Securities and their conversion formula with reference to the general
status of the securities market and other relevant factors. The Offering price for
the Securities and the conversion formula should not be considered an indication
of the actual value of the Securities and is not based on our net worth or prior
earnings. We cannot assure you that the Securities could be resold by you at the
Offering price or at any other price. The rights of holders of the Notes will be
those of general unsecured creditors, and the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock
issued upon conversion of the Notes will be equity interests in the Company and
will not constitute indebtedness. As general unsecured creditors, the rights of
the holders of the Notes will rank junior to any senior or secured indebtedness.
The Series B Nonvoting Common Stock issued upon conversion of the Notes will
rank junior to all existing and future indebtedness and other non-equity claims
on the Company with respect to assets available to satisfy claims on the
Company, including in a liquidation of the Company. Additionally, unlike
indebtedness, for which principal and interest would customarily be payable on
specified due dates, there will be no specified payments of dividends with respect
to the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock and dividends are payable only if,
when and as authorized and declared by the Company and depend on, among
other matters, the Company's historical and projected results of operations,



liquidity, cash flows, capital levels, financial condition, debt service
requirements and other cash needs, financing covenants, applicable state law,
federal and state regulatory prohibitions and other restrictions and any other
factors the Company's board of directors deems relevant at the time. In addition,
the terms of the Notes and the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock will not limit
the amount of debt or other obligations the Company may incur in the future.
Accordingly, the Company may incur substantial amounts of additional debt and
other obligations that will rank senior to the Notes and the Series B Nonvoting
Common Stock. The Company is controlled by its parent corporation, Keezel
Netherlands. The Company’s parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands, owns all
of the Company’s Series A Voting Common Stock, and, if the Notes are converted
into Series B Nonvoting Common Stock in the future, will continue to hold all of
the Company’s voting stock. As a result, if investors in this offering receive
equity, they will be minority stockholders of a subsidiary and will not have the
ability to influence a vote by the shareholders or the board of directors or any
matters relating to the Company. Any valuation at this stage is difficult to
assess. Unlike listed companies that are valued publicly through market-driven
stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially start-ups, is difficult
to assess and you may risk overpaying for your investment. In addition, there
may be additional classes of securities issued in the future with rights that are
superior to the Notes or the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock into which the
Notes may convert. Your ownership of the shares of Series B Nonvoting Common
Stock upon conversion of the Notes will be subject to dilution. Purchasers do not
have preemptive rights. If the Company conducts subsequent offerings of
securities, issues shares pursuant to a compensation plan or otherwise issues
additional shares, investors who acquire shares through the conversion of Notes
purchased in this offering who do not participate in those other stock issuances
will experience dilution in their percentage ownership of the Company's
outstanding shares. Furthermore, shareholders may experience a dilution in the
value of their shares depending on the terms and pricing of any future share
issuances and the value of the Company's assets at the time of issuance. Prior to
conversion the Company might need to authorize and issue additional Series B
Nonvoting Common Stock to cover the conversion. In the event that the amount
raised in the Offering exceeds the the number of authorized Series B shares the
Company may have to authorize and issue more Series B Nonvoting Common
Stock to cover the conversion. There can be no assurance that we will ever
provide liquidity to Purchasers through either a sale of the Company or a
registration of the Securities. There can be no assurance that any form of
merger, combination, or sale of the Company will take place, or that any merger,
combination, or sale would provide liquidity for Purchasers. Furthermore, we
may be unable to register the Securities for resale by Purchasers for legal,
commercial, regulatory, market-related or other reasons. In the event that we
are unable to effect a registration, Purchasers could be unable to sell their
Securities unless an exemption from registration is available. This offering
involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have
the benefit of information that later investors have. Once we meet our target



amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine instruct the escrow
agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors whose
subscription agreements have been accepted will become our [shareholders]. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it
is not uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to
companies’ businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When
such changes happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended
to our Form C with the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been
accepted will have the right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money
back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will
already be our [shareholders] and will have no such right. The Company does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends for the foreseeable future. The Company
currently intends to retain future earnings, if any, for the foreseeable future, to
repay indebtedness and to support its business. The Company does not intend in
the foreseeable future to pay any dividends to holders of its shares of Series B
Nonvoting Common Stock. In addition to the risks listed above, businesses are
often subject to risks not foreseen or fully appreciated by the management. It is
not possible to foresee all risks that may affect us. Moreover, the Company
cannot predict whether the Company will successfully effectuate the Company's
current business plan. Each prospective Purchaser is encouraged to carefully
analyze the risks and merits of an investment in the Securities and should take
into consideration when making such analysis, among other, the Risk Factors
discussed above. THE SECURITIES OFFERED INVOLVE A HIGH DEGREE OF
RISK AND MAY RESULT IN THE LOSS OF YOUR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. ANY
PERSON CONSIDERING THE PURCHASE OF THESE SECURITIES SHOULD BE
AWARE OF THESE AND OTHER FACTORS SET FORTH IN THIS FORM C AND
SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OR HER LEGAL, TAX AND FINANCIAL
ADVISORS PRIOR TO MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES. THE
SECURITIES SHOULD ONLY BE PURCHASED BY PERSONS WHO CAN AFFORD
TO LOSE ALL OF THEIR INVESTMENT.

e There are several potential competitors who are better positioned than we are to
take the majority of the market We will compete with larger, established
[PRODUCTS] who currently have products on the markets and/or various
respective product development programs. They have much better financial
means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They may succeed in
developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us, or
superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or that the
[PRODUCT] developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed
technologies. It should further be assumed that that competition will intensify.

e This is a brand-new company. It has no history, no clients, no revenues. If you
are investing in this company, it's because you think the [PRODUCT] is a good
idea, that the IP Company will be able to secure the intellectual property rights
to the [PRODUCT] and that the company will secure the exclusive marketing and
manufacture rights to the [PRODUCT] from the IPCompany, that we will be able
to successfully market, manufacture and sell the [PRODUCT], that we can price it



right and sell it to enough people so that the company will succeed. We have yet
to sell any vessels and we plan to market a vessel that has no commercial
contemporaries. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no assurance
that we will ever be profitable

e Even if we raise the maximum sought in this offering, we may need to raise
extensive funds in order to be able to start manufacturing operations. We
estimate that we will require at least $[X] million to commence commercial
production of the [PRODUCT)]. We believe that we will be able to finance the
commercial production of the [PRODUCT] throughpre-payment for orders. If we
are unable to do so we may need to raise money from bank loans, future sales of
securities or some combination thereof.

® You can't easily resell the securities. One of the Company's most valuable assets
is its intellectual property. We currently hold 34 issued patents and the license
to two additional patents, the Miller patents, as well as a number of trademarks,
copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We have 11 additional
patents pending. We believe the most valuable component of our intellectual
property portfolio is our patents and that much of the Company's current value
depends on the strength of these patents. The Company intends to continue to
file additional patent applications and build its intellectual property portfolio as
we discover new technologies related to elliptical cycling and fitness.

e Qur financial review includes a going concern note. Our ability to continue as a
going concern for the next twelve months is dependent upon our ability to
generate sufficient cash flows from operations to meet our obligations, and/or to
obtain additional capital financing from our members and/or third parties. No
assurance can be given that we will be successful in these efforts. These factors,
among others, raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

e Any valuation at this stage is pure speculation. No one is saying the company is
worth a specific amount. They can't. It's a question of whether you, the investor,
want to pay this price for this security. Don't think you can make that call? Then
don't invest.

e Our business projections are only estimates. There can be no assurance that the
company will meet those projections. There can be no assurance that the
company (and you will only make money) if there is sufficient demand for
product, people think its a better option than the competition and [PRODUCT)]
has priced the services at a level that allows the company to make a profit and
still attract business.

OWNERSHIP AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE; RIGHTS OF THE SECURITIES
Ownership
e AvocadoNinjaB.V., 100.0% ownership, null

Classes of securities



e null: 0

OWNERSHIP AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE; RIGHTS OF THE
SECURITIES

Ownership

AvocadoNinja, BV, 100.0% ownership, Series A Voting Common Stock

Investors from the first Startengine campaign (“First Offering”) are currently
holding convertible notes (“First Notes”) that can convert into shares at the
maturity date. In case this happens, this event will dilute the ownership of
Keezel Inc. by AvocadoNinja BV.

The Notes being sold in this second Startengine campaign are new convertible
notes with a different conversion valuation than the notes of the first
Startengine campaign.

Prior to conversion of the First Notes and the Notes of this Offering, the
Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Keezel Netherlands. Messrs Miiller
and Schmid own a controlling interest in Keezel Netherlands.

Assuming conversion of all outstanding First Notes (amounting to USD
$767,158 as of Nov, 30th 2018) at a valuation of $4,000,000 and all the Notes of
the Offering of the second Startengine campaign at a valuation of $8,000,000,
the Purchasers will beneficially own nonvoting equity representing
approximately an expected 0.14% of the Company if the Minimum Amount is
raised and approximately an expected 12.83% if the Maximum Amount is raised.

After conversion of the First Notes of the First Offering and conversion of the
Notes of this Offering, assuming the Maximum Amount is raised of this Keezel
Netherlands along with converted First Note holders and is expected to hold
ownership of more than 70%.

Classes of securities



o Series A Voting Common Stock: 7,100,000

Capitalization

The Company’s authorized capital stock consists of 10,000,000 shares of
Common Stock, of which 7,100,000 shares are designated Series A Voting
Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share, all of which are currently
outstanding, and 2,900,000 shares are designated Series B Nonvoting Common
Stock, par value $0.0001 per share, none of which are currently outstanding. The
Company has issued the following outstanding securities:

Type of security

Amount outstanding

Voting Rights

Anti-Dilution Rights

How this security may limit,
dilute or qualify the Notes
being offered

Percentage voting power of
the company held by the
current holders of the Series
A Voting Common Stock
(assuming conversion of all
convertible securities, First

Series A Voting Common Stock

7,100,000 shares

The holders of Series A Voting Common Stock are
entitled to one vote for each share of such
common stock held at all meetings of stockholders
(and written actions in lieu of meetings). Holders
of record of the Company's Series A Voting
Common Stock are entitled to elect directors as
described in the Board Composition.

None

The Series B Nonvoting Common Stock into which
the Notes convert have no voting rights.

100%



Notes and the Notes)

o Convertible notes (First Notes)

Type of

security
Convertible Notes (First Notes of now closed First Offering)
(First

Notes)

Amount

outstanding

as of

November $767,158
8th 2018

(First
Notes)

The principal and accrued but unpaid interest under the First Notes
convert into shares of Series B Nonvoting Common Stock at
maturity or upon a qualified equity financing, a change in control
of the Company or a firm commitment underwritten initial public
offering (“IPO”). The conversion price of the First Notes is equal to
(a) in the event of a qualified equity financing, the lesser of (i) 80%
of the per share price paid by investors in a qualified equity
financing or (ii) the price equal to the quotient of $4,000,000
divided by the aggregate number of outstanding shares of the
Company’s common stock immediately prior to the initial closing
of the qualified equity financing or (b) in the event a qualified
equity financing does not take place prior to the maturity date, at
the Company’s option, the price equal to the quotient of
$4,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of outstanding shares
of the Company’s common stock as of the maturity date. If prior to
conversion or repayment in full of the First Notes, the Company
consummates a change in control or an IPO, the conversion price of



Conversion
terms:

(First
Notes)

Voting and
Control

(First
Notes)

Interest
Rate and
Maturity of
Notes

(First
Notes)

the First Notes will equal 80% of the per share price (x) received by
the holders of the Series A Voting Common Stock (whether in the
form of cash, securities or other property) in the change of control
or (y) offered to the public in the IPO, as applicable. A qualified
equity financing is defined as the issue and sale of equity securities
to investors on or before the date of repayment in full of the
existing convertible First Notes in an equity financing resulting in
gross proceeds to the Company of at least $4,000,000 at a pre-
money valuation of at least $4,000,000, excluding the conversion of
the existing convertible First Notes. A change in control means (a)
the acquisition of the Company by another entity by means of any
transaction (including, without limitation, any reorganization,
merger, reverse merger or consolidation), or (b) a sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company, but does not include
(i) any transaction in which the stockholders of the Company prior
to the transaction hold more than 50% of the voting securities of
the surviving or acquiring entity immediately after the transaction
(other than in areverse merger between the Company and a public
shell company), (ii) any transaction for the sole purpose of
changing the Company’s domicile or (iii) the sale of the Company’s
equity securities in any private equity financing, the principal
purpose of which is to raise funds for the continued operation of
the Company.

Neither the First Notes nor the Series B Nonvoting Common Stock
into which the First Notes convert have voting rights.

The First Notes will bear an interest rate of 5% simple interest
annually and will mature two years from the date of issuance. The
First Notes will be issued as of the sixtieth (60th) day after the
Offering commences, which is the expected termination date of the
Offering (which date may be extended at our option). Interest will
start to accrue on the issuance date, and will be paid in arrears at
maturity in cash or, at the Company’s option, in shares of Series B
Nonvoting Common Stock at a conversion price equal to the
quotient of $4,000,000 divided by the aggregate number of
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock as of the
interest payment date.



Valuation of First Notes

The First Notes are valued at face value. Upon conversion of the Notes, the value
ascribed to the Company will depend on the factors described in “The Offering
and The Securities — The Securities — Conversion Terms”, OFFERING
MEMORANDUM for First Offering filed on July 31st 2017), Exhibit A to Form C
The price of the Securities was determined arbitrarily. The price of the Securities
does not necessarily bear any relationship to the Company's asset value, net
worth, revenues or other established criteria of value, and should not be
considered indicative of the actual value of the Securities. A third-party
valuation or appraisal has not been prepared for the business.

Dividend Rights

Holders of our Common Stock are entitled to receive dividends, if any, as may be
declared from time to time by the Board of Directors out of legally available
funds. We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock and
currently do not anticipate paying any cash dividends after this Offering or in
the foreseeable future.

Voting Rights

Holders of our Series A Voting Common Stock are entitled to vote on all matters
submitted to a vote of the stockholders, including the election of directors.
Holders of our Series B Nonvoting Common Stock (into which the Notes and all
outstanding First Notes are convertible) are not entitled to vote on any matters.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions

In the event of the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, or the
occurrence of a liquidation transaction as defined above, holders of the Common
Stock will be entitled to share ratably in the net assets legally available for
distribution to stockholders after the payment of all the Company’s debts and
other liabilities and the satisfaction of any liquidation preference granted to the
holders of any then outstanding shares of preferred stock. The Company’s
certificate of incorporation does not currently authorize the issuance of
preferred stock.

Rights and Preferences

The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of the Company’s Common



Stock are subject to and may be adversely affected by, the rights of the holders of
any then outstanding shares of preferred stock. The Company’s certificate of
incorporation does not currently authorize the issuance of preferred stock

What it means to be a Minority Holder

In our Company, the class and voting structure of our stock has the effect of
concentrating voting control with our parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands.
As a result, Keezel Netherlands has the ability to make all major decisions
regarding the Company. As a holder of the Notes,you will have no voting rights.
Even upon conversion of the Notes purchased in this offering, you will have no
voting rights and will hold a minority interest in the Company, and our parent
corporation Keezel Netherlands will still control the Company. In that case, as a
minority holder of Series B Nonvoting Common Stock you will have no ability to
influence our policies or any other corporate matter, including the election of
directors, changes to our Company’s governance documents, additional
issuances of securities, Company repurchases of securities, a sale of the
Company or of assets of the Company or transactions with related parties.

Dilution

The investor’s stake in a company could be diluted due to the company issuing
additional shares. In other words, when the company issues more shares, the
percentage of the company that you own will go down, even though the value of
the company may go up. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This
increase in number of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such
as an initial public offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital
round or angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or by
conversion of certain instruments, such as convertible notes, preferred shares or
warrants, into stock. If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor
could experience value dilution, with each share into which the notes may
convert being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total
percentage an investor owns being less than before.

There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per
share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends, and
most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends,preferring to invest
any earnings into the company). The type of dilution that hurts early-stage
investors most occurs when the company sells more shares in a“down round,”
meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings. This type of dilution
might also happen upon conversion of convertible notes into shares.Typically,
the terms of convertible notes issued by early- stage companies provide that in
the event of another round of financing, the holders of the convertible notes get
to convert their notes into equity at a “discount” to the price paid by the new



investors, i.e., they get more shares than the new investors would for the same
price. Additionally, convertible notes may have a“price cap” on the conversion
price, which effectively acts as a share price ceiling. Either way, the holders of
the convertible notes get more shares for their money than new investors. In the
event that the financing is a “down round” the holders of the convertible notes
will dilute existing equity holders, and even more than the new investors do,
because they get more shares for their money. If you are making an investment
expecting to own a certain percentage of the Company or expecting each share
to hold a certain amount of value, it’s important to realize how the value of
those shares can decrease by actions taken by the Company. Dilution can make
drastic changes to the value of each share, ownership percentage, voting control,
and earnings per share.

What it means to be a Minority Holder

In our Company, the class and voting structure of our stock has the effect of
concentrating voting control with our parent corporation, Keezel Netherlands. As a
result, Keezel Netherlands has the ability to make all major decisions regarding the
Company. As a holder of the Notes,you will have no voting rights. Even upon
conversion of the Notes purchased in this offering, you will have no voting rights and
will hold a minority interest in the Company, and our parent corporation Keezel
Netherlands will still control the Company. In that case, as a minority holder of Series
B Nonvoting Common Stock you will have no ability to influence our policies or any
other corporate matter, including the election of directors, changes to our Company’s
governance documents, additional issuances of securities, Company repurchases of
securities, a sale of the Company or of assets of the Company or transactions with
related parties.

Dilution

Enter here the risks of dilution and any additional issuances of securities, issuer
repurchases of securities, a sale of the issuer or of assets of the issuer or transactions
with related parties. Dilution will depend on the type of security offered. If offering
debt, need to include how that might affect future financing.

Example - Investors should understand the potential for dilution. Each Investor's
stake in the Company, could be diluted due to the Company issuing additional shares.
In other words, when the Company issues more shares, the percentage of the
Company that you own will increase, even though the value of the Company may
increase. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This increases in number
of shares outstanding could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public
offering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round or angel investment),



employees exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g.,
convertible notes, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If we decide to issue more shares, an Investor could experience value dilution, with
each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total
percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (although this typically
occurs only if we offer dividends, and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer
dividends, referring to invest any earnings into the Company).

The type of dilution that hurts early-stage investors mostly occurs when the company
sells more shares in a "down round,” meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier
offerings.

If you are making an investment expecting to own a certain percentage of the
Company or expecting each share to hold a certain amount of value, it is important to
realize how the value of those shares can decrease by actions taken by the Company.
Dilution can make drastic changes to the value of each share, ownership percentage,
voting control, and earnings per share.

Transferability of securities
For ayear, the securities can only be resold:

Inan IPO;

To the company;

To an accredited investor; and

To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND FINANCIAL CONDITION; MATERIAL
INDEBTEDNESS

Financial Statements

Our financial statements can be found attached to this document. The financial
review covers the period ending in 2018-12-31.

Financial Condition
Results of Operation
The Company believes that prior earnings and cash flows are not indicative of future

earnings and cash flows because the Keezel device has just started to be distributed by
the Company in 2017 and B2B sales cycle often are long.



In 2018 the Company has generated gross revenues of $308,482 with a gross margin of
$61,696 and a loss from operations of $384,002. 2018 closed with a net loss of
$449,771. Based on our forecast, with the liquidity of the anticipated full raise
amount, we anticipate that we can operate the business for 12 months without
revenue generation.

There are no other sources of capital available on which Keezel, Inc. may rely. Keezel,
Inc. revenue so far has relied on a number of sales channels that have just been
opened up. Opening up of new sales channels and growing them will take an
unpredictable amount of time. In a positive scenario this will allow the company to
grow its business further based on profit. In a negative scenario the company will
need to attract additional funds.

Financial Milestones

The Company does not expect to achieve profitability in the next 12 months and
intends to focus on the following milestones: 1) Open new sales channels; and 2)
Build team and execute on strategy to increase marketing, sales and distribution.

The Company expects gross expenses of $25,000 to $100,000 per month for the next
12 months depending on the size of the sales team needed.

We'll continue to set up distribution partnerships in the US, to grow our customer
base and get the Keezel product on the shelves of retail stores. Our goal is to sell and
distribute a range of security devices and services that cater to the needs of consumers
and businesses. By partnering with telecom providers, information security companies
and cybersecurity companieswe aim to leverage their existing customer bases and
grow the Keezel brand, Keezel product sales and the value of the product to its users.
We aim to hire a sales VP to build relationships e-tailers and retailers in the US. We'll
expand sales activity and product development to get results in B2B market focusing
on distributors, value added resellers and systems integrators. We'll develop more
partnerships with Cybersecurity companies, Telecom & Cable providers and Infosec
companies. We'll start offering a second generation of Keezels to grow our market
share and technological lead.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Offering proceeds are essential to our operations. We plan to use the proceeds as

set under "Future Plans” in our Offering Memorandum to execute on our business
strategy to market, sell and distribute the Keezel device. The Offering proceeds will
have a beneficial effect on our liquidity, as we currently have very limited cash on
hand.

The Company anticipate a burn rate of $10k to $50k. Accordingly, the Company
believes that the proceeds from the Offering will be sufficient to meet its expected



cash requirements for currently planned operations for the next 12 months. In order
for the Company to take advantage of growth opportunities and ultimately achieve
profitability, it may be required to obtain capital from external sources, increase
revenues and reduce operating costs. However, there can be no assurance that the
Company’s operations will become profitable or that external sources of financing,
including the issuance of debt and/or equity securities, will be available at times and
at terms acceptable to the Company, or at all. The issuance of additional equity or
convertible debt securities will also cause dilution to the Company’s stockholders.

The Company’s primary sources of capital are proceeds from the Offering, other sales
of equity or debt securities, and sales of products and services.

The Company has made no capital expenditures in the past two years and intends to
make the following capital expenditures in the near future: Personal computer &
mobile phone for the Vice President of Sales

After reviewing the above discussion of the steps the Company intends to take,
potential Purchasers should consider whether achievement of each step within the
estimated time frame is realistic in their judgement. Potential Purchasers should also
assess the consequences to the Company of any delays in taking these steps and
whether the Company will need additional financing to accomplish them.

The financial statements are an important part of this Annual Report and should be
reviewed in their entirety. The financial statements of the Company are attached
hereto.

Indebtedness

First Note In 2017 and 2018, the Company entered into a series of convertible notes
agreements (First Note) for total principal of $767,158 as of April 15, 2019. The
instruments mature in 24 months and bear at 5% interest per annum. If and upon a
qualified equity financing where the Company raises gross proceeds of $4,000,000 or
greater, the instruments’ face value along with accrued interest will automatically
convert to Class B common stock at a discount of 20% to the pricing in the triggering
round or the price per share implied by a pre-money valuation of $4,000,000 on the
Company’s fully diluted capitalization. If and upon a corporate transaction involving
the Company’s parent, the convertible notes payable become immediately due and
payable, together with interested calculated at 10% calculated as if the convertible
notes were outstanding for 2 years. If at maturity neither of the aforementioned
conversions have occurred, the Company may elect to convert the convertible notes
payable, and any unpaid accrued interest, into the number of shares determined by
dividing the then outstanding principal and interest by the price per share implied by



a pre-money valuation of $4,000,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization. As
of November 30, 2018, the convertible notes payable had not been converted and
remained outstanding in the full principal amounts. The Company analyzed the First
Note for beneficial conversion features, and concluded the conversion terms did not
constitute beneficial conversion features or were contingent upon future unknown
events, and therefore no beneficial conversion feature discount has been booked as of
April 15, 2019. Second Note In 2018, the Company entered into a series of convertible
notes agreements (Second Note) for total principal of $83,160 as of April 15, 2019. The
instruments mature in 24 months and bear at 5% interest per annum. If and upon a
qualified equity financing where the Company raises gross proceeds of $8,000,000 or
greater, the instruments’ face value along with accrued interest will automatically
convert to Class B common stock at a discount of 20% to the pricing in the triggering
round or the price per share implied by a pre-money valuation of $8,000,000 on the
Company’s fully diluted capitalization. If and upon a corporate transaction involving
the Company’s parent, the convertible notes payable become immediately due and
payable, together with interested calculated at 10% calculated as if the convertible
notes were outstanding for 2 years. If at maturity neither of the aforementioned
conversions have occurred, the Company may elect to convert the convertible notes
payable, and any unpaid accrued interest, into the number of shares determined by
dividing the then outstanding principal and interest by the price per share implied by
a pre-money valuation of $8,000,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization. As
of April 15, 2019, the convertible notes payable had not been converted and remained
outstanding in the full principal amounts. The Company analyzed the Second Note for
beneficial conversion features, and concluded the conversion terms did not constitute
beneficial conversion features or were contingent upon future unknown events, and
therefore no beneficial conversion feature discount has been booked as of April 15,
2019.

Recent offerings of securities

e 1970-01-01, null, 0 null. Use of proceeds: Recent offerings of securities 2017-07-
19, Section 4(a)(2), 7100000 Series A Voting Common Stock. Use of proceeds:
These shares of Series A Voting Common Stock were sold to our parent
corporation, Keezel Netherlands (AvocadoNinja BV), for an aggregate purchase
price of $710 and such capital will be used for general corporate purposes. 2018-
09-14, In 2017 and extended into 2018 the Company entered into a series of
convertible notes agreements for total principal of $767,158 under Regulation
CF. This was the first Startengine campaign raise (First Offering) which closed
on 14 September 2018. Use of proceeds of First Offering The table below shows
the approximate use of proceeds in percentage per category through December
31, 2017. Approximate Use of Proceeds % Intermediary Fees 6.0% Estimated
Attorney Fees 4.9% Estimated Accountant/Auditor Fees 0.6% Marketing 10.1%
Research and Development 0.0% Manufacturing 0.0% Equipment 0.0% Purchase
of Real Property 0.0% Future Wages 0.0% Accrued Wages 0.0% Accrued expenses
of managers, officers, directors or employees 0.0% Repayment of Debt 0.0%
Repayment of obligations in arrears 0.0% Loan to parent corporation to fulfill



pre-orders 78.4% General Working Capital 0.0% Total 100.0% The use of
proceeds is in line with the estimated use of proceeds.

e 2018-09-14, Regulation CF, 767158 convertible notes agreements. Use of
proceeds: September 14, 2018, In 2017 and extended into 2018 the Company
entered into a series of convertible notes agreements for total principal of
$767,158 under Regulation CF. This was the first StartEngine campaign raise
(First Offering) which closed on September 14, 2018.

e 2018-12-20, Regulation CF, 83160 convertible notes agreements. Use of
proceeds: December 20, 2018, In 2018 and extended into 2019 the Company
entered into a series of convertible notes agreements for total principal of
$83,160 (as of April 15, 2019) under Regulation CF. This was the second
StartEngine campaign raise (Second Offering) which is still open..

Valuation

$8,000,000.00

The company determined the valuation cap, discount, and interest rate of the Notes in
this offering internally based on its own assessment of the company's current and
future value, as well as relative risk for investors investing in similarly situated
companies. The Notes may convert to equity securities of the company in the future in
two years or a major investment event. At that time, the valuation of the company will
be set at $8.000.000 pre money or through negotiations with prospective investors.
Prospective investors may determine the value of the company through one or
multiple methods which include: Liquidation Value— The amount for which the assets
of the company can be sold, minus the liabilities owed; Book Value— This is based on
analysis of the company’s financial statements, usually looking at the company’s
balance sheet; and Earnings Approach— This is based on what the prospective
investor will pay (the present value) for what the prospective investor expects to
obtain in the future. Upon conversion of the Notes, the value ascribed to the Company
will depend on the factors described in “The Offering and The Securities — The
Securities — Conversion Terms”. The price of the Securities was determined
arbitrarily, taking into account milestones achieved as well as traction in the market.
The price of the Securities does not necessarily bear any relationship to the
Company's asset value, net worth, revenues or other established criteria of value, and
should not be considered indicative of the actual value of the Securities. A third-party
valuation or appraisal has not been prepared for the business.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Recent offerings of securities

2017-07-19, Section 4(a)(2), 7100000 Series A Voting Common Stock. Use of proceeds:
These shares of Series A Voting Common Stock were sold to our parent corporation,
Keezel Netherlands (AvocadoNinja BV), for an aggregate purchase price of $710 and
such capital will be used for general corporate purposes.



2018-09-14, In 2017 and extended into 2018 the Company entered into a series of
convertible notes agreements for total principal of $767,158 under Regulation CF. This
was the first Startengine campaign raise (First Offering) which closed on 14 September
2018.

Use of proceeds of First Offering

The table below shows the approximate use of proceeds in percentage per category
through December 31, 2017.

Approximate Use of Proceeds %
Intermediary Fees 6.0%
Estimated Attorney Fees 4.9%
Estimated Accountant/Auditor Fees 0.6%
Marketing 10.1%
Research and Development 0.0%
Manufacturing 0.0%
Equipment 0.0%
Purchase of Real Property 0.0%
Future Wages 0.0%

Accrued Wages 0.0%



Accrued expenses of managers, officers, directors or employees 0.0%

Repayment of Debt 0.0%
Repayment of obligations in arrears 0.0%
Loan to parent corporation to fulfill pre-orders 78.4%
General Working Capital 0.0%
Total 100.0%

The use of proceeds is in line with the estimated use of proceeds.

Estimated Use of proceeds of the Offering

The table below shows the expected use of proceeds in percentage per category of the
second Startengine campaign.

Approximate Use of Proceeds %
Intermediary Fees 6.0%
Estimated Attorney Fees 5.0%
Estimated Accountant/Auditor Fees 1.0%
Sales & Marketing 50.0%

Research and Development 0.0%



Manufacturing 0.0%

Equipment 0.0%
Purchase of Real Property 0.0%
Future Wages 10.0%
Accrued Wages 0.0%

Accrued expenses of managers, officers, directors or employees 10.0%

Repayment of Debt 0.0%
Repayment of obligations in arrears 0.0%
Loan to parent corporation to fulfill pre-orders 0.0%
General Working Capital 18.0%
Total 100.0%
Irregular Use of Proceeds

The Company might incur Irregular Use of Proceeds that may include but are not
limited to the following over $10,000: Accrued expenses of managers, officers,
directors or employees; Future Wages

REGULATORY INFORMATION
Disqualification

Example - No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its
officers or directors.

Compliance failure

Example - The company has not previously failed to comply with Regulation CF.



Annual Report

The company will make annual reports available on its website.
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KEEZEL, INC

BALANCE SHEETS
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(unaudited)
December 31,
2018
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 68,332
Escrow Balance 31,360
Prepaid Expense -
Accrued Interest Receivable, related party 9,999
Receivable from Convertible Notes 19,514
Total Current Assets 129,206
Non-Current Assets
Advance to Related Party 56,642
Total Non-Current Assets 56,642
TOTAL ASSETS $ 185,848
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilites
Curmrent Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 345
Accrued Expenses -
Deferred Revenue -
Total Current Liabilities 345
Long-Term Liabilities:
Accrued Interest Payable 33,326
Convertible Notes Payable, net of discount 751,175
Total Long-Term Liabilities 784,501
Total Liabilities 784,846

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

Series A Voting Common Stock, $0.0001
par, 7,100,000 shares authorized,
7,100,000 shares issued and
outstanding, as of December 31, 2017

710

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral
part of these fmancial statements.
-3.



Series B Nonvoting Common Stock,
$0.0001 par, 2,900,000 shares
authorized, 0 shares issued and
outstanding, as of December 31, 2017

Additional Paid In Capital -

Retained Earnings (149,938)

Net Income (449,771)

Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) (598,999)

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY $ 185,848

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral
part of these fmancial statements.
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KEEZEL, INC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE PERIODS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(unaudited)
December 31, 2018

Revenue S 308,482
Cost of Goods Sold 246,785
Gross Margin 61,696
Expenses
Advertising and Marketing 99,429
General and Administrative Expenses 346,270
Total Expense 445,699
Operating Income/(Loss) (384,002)
Non Operating Expenses

Interest Expense (73,100)

Interest Income-Related Party 7,332

Total Other Income (Expense) (65,768)

Provision for Income Tax
Net income/(Loss) S (449,771)

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral
part of these fmancial statements.
-5.
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KEEZEL, INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

(unaudited)
December 31, 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income/(Net Loss) S (449,771)
Amortization of debt discount 38,876
Total Adjustments to reconcile Net Cash Provided By
Operations:
(Increase)/Decrease in accrued interest receivable (7,331)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepaid expense 1,816
Increase/(Decrease) in account payable (17,513)
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued expenses (74,043)
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue (27,131)
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued interest payable 27,750
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities: (507,347)
Cash flows from Investing Activities
Restricted Cash (4,616)
Advances to related party, net 232,627
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities 228,011
Cash flows from Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock -
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable 347,518
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 347,518
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 68,182

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral
part of these fmancial statements.
-7-



Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 150
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period S 68,332

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest ) -
Cash paid for income taxes ) -
Convertible Note Receivable/Convertible Note S (19,514)

See Independent Accountant’s Review Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral
part of these fmancial statements.
-8 -



NOTE 1 —-NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Keezel, Inc. (the “Company™), is a corporation organized April 27, 2017 under the laws of Delaware. The
Company was formed to manage sales and operations in the United States of America market as a subsidiary
of its Dutch parent, AvocadoNinja, B.V., based in Amsterdam, Netherlands (the “Parent”), selling the
Parent’s Keezel brand of cybersecurity products and services.

All of the Company's intellectual property and its board of directors are located in the Netherlands.

Going Concern and Management's Plans

The Company lacks significant working capital and has only recently commenced operations. We will incur
significant additional costs before significant revenue is achieved. These matters raise substantial doubt
about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. During the next 12 months, the Company
intends to fund its operations with funding from our proposed Regulation Crowdfunding campaign, and
additional debt and/or equity financing as determined to be necessary. There are no assurances that
management will be able to raise capital on terms acceptable to the Company. If we are unable to obtain
sufficient amounts of additional capital, we may be required to reduce the scope of our planned
development, which could harm our business, financial condition and operating results. The balance sheet
and related financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from these uncertainties.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation
The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP").

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
certain estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the reported
amount of expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results could materially differ from these
estimates. It is reasonably possible that changes in estimates will occur in the near term.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company’s cash
and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The
Company’s escrow balance as of December 31, 2018 was $31,360, and represents funds held by the
Company’s escrow agent on its behalf related to the ongoing fundraising efforts discussed in Note 3.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability inan orderly transaction
between market participants as of the measurement date. Applicable accounting guidance provides an
established hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the use of observable inputs
and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most observable inputs be used when
available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability
and are developed based on market data obtained from sources independent of the Company. Unobservable
inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions about the factors that market participants would
use in valuing the asset or liability. There are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

See accompanying Independent Accountant’s Review Report
-9.



Level - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
1 liabilities
in active markets.

Level - Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
2

Level - Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity.
3

The fair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

Fair-value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent information
available to management as of December 31, 2018. The respective carrying value of certain on-balance-
sheet financial instruments approximated their fair values.

Account Receivables

Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. Accounts receivable are periodically
evaluated for collectability based on past credit history with clients and other factors. Provisions for losses
on accounts receivable are determined on the basis of loss experience, known and inherent risk in the
account balance, and current economic conditions. As of December 31, 2018, the Company carried no
receivables.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased. Depreciation is recorded for property and
equipment using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets. The Company reviews
the recoverability of all long-lived assets, including the related useful lives, whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a long-lived asset might not be recoverable. As of
December 31, 2018, the Company held no property or equipment.

Costs of Net Revenues
The primary component of costs of net revenues is the licensing fee between the Company and its Parent
discussed in Note 6.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC 740, Income
Taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in effect
during the years in which the basis differencesreverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when it is unlikely
that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company assesses its income tax positions and record tax benefits for all years subject to examination
based upon our evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the reporting date. In
accordance with ASC 740-10, for those tax positions where there is a greater than 50% likelihood that a tax
benefit will be sustained, the Company’s policy is to record the largest amount of tax benefit that is more
likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that has full knowledge of all
relevant information. For those income tax positions where there is less than 50% likelihood that a tax
benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized in the financial statements. The Company has
evaluated its income tax positions and has determined that it does not have any uncertain tax positions.
The Company accounts for income taxes with the recognition of estimated income taxes payable or
refundable on income tax returns for the current period and for the estimated future tax effect attributable
to temporary differences and carryforwards. Measurement of deferred income items is based on enacted

See accompanying Independent Accountant’s Review Report
-10-



tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deferred income tax assets being reduced by available
tax benefits not expected to be realized in the immediate future. The Company estimates it has net operating
loss carryforwards of $590,236 as of December 31, 2018. The Company pays taxes at an effective blended
rate of approximately 29% and has used this effective rate to derive a net deferred tax asset of $134,350 as
of December 31, 2018, resulting from its net operating loss carryforward and other book-to-tax differences.
Due to uncertainty as to the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize
the net operating loss carryforwards before they begin to expire in 2037, the Company has recorded a full
valuation allowance to reduce the net deferred tax asset to zero.

The Company files U.S. federal and state income tax returns. All tax periods since inception remain open
to examination by the taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, (*USD™), which is the reporting currency
and the functional currency of the Company. In accordance with ASC 830, Foreign Currency Matters,
foreign denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated to their USD equivalents using foreign
exchange rates which prevailed at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. Revenue and expenses were translated at the prevailing
rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Related translation adjustments are reported as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity/(deficit), whereas gains or losses resulting from foreign currency
transactions are included in results of operations. For the period ended December 31, 2017, the Company
determined the effects of foreign currency translations were not material and therefore did not recognize
any such gains or losses.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America
which it believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
up to $250,000. At times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

NOTE 3 - CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

In 2017, the Company entered into a series of convertible notes agreements for total principal of $368,095.
The instruments mature in 24 months and bear at 5% interest per annum.

If and upon a qualified equity financing where the Company raises gross proceeds of $4,000,000 or greater,
the instruments’ face value along with accrued interest will automatically convert to Class B common stock
at a discount of 20% to the pricing in the triggering round or the price per share implied by a pre-money
valuation of $4,000,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization.

If and upon a corporate transaction involving the Company’s parent, the convertible notes payable become
immediately due and payable, together with interest calculated at 10% calculated as if the convertible notes
were outstanding for 2 years.

If at maturity neither of the aforementioned conversions have occurred, the Company may elect to convert
the convertible notes payable, and any unpaid accrued interest, into the number of shares determined by
dividing the then outstanding principal and interest by the price per share implied by a pre-money valuation
of $4.000,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization

As of December 31, 2018, the convertible notes payable had not been converted and remained outstanding
in the full principal amounts. The Company analyzed the note for beneficial conversion features, and
concluded the conversion terms did not constitute beneficial conversion features or were contingent upon

future unknown events, and therefore no beneficial conversion feature discount has been booked as of
December 31, 2018.

See accompanying Independent Accountant’s Review Report
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Loan placement fees of $26,725 were incurred in connection with the issuance of these notes and were
recorded as discounts to the notes. The Company is amortizing such fees to interest expense over a 24-
month period. $22,828 of such costs were amortized to interest expense during the year ended December
31, 2018.

In 2018, the Company entered into a series of convertible notes agreements for total principal of $367,032.
The instruments mature in 24 months and bear at 5% interest per annum. The notes bear substantially
similar terms as the previous notes. The Company incurred loan placement fees of $48,144. The Company
is amortizing such fees to interest expense over a 24-month period. $16,048 of such costs were amortized
to interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2018,

In 2018, the Company entered into a series of convertible notes agreements for a total principal of $16,580.
None of the proceeds have been received as of December 31, 2018, and the Company recorded a note
receivable in the balance sheet.

As of December 31,2017, $783,272 of convertible notes were issued and outstanding, which are presented
net of unamortized loan expenses of $32,096. Interest expense of $27,750 was recognized during the year
ended December 31, 2018 on such notes, of which none was paid so the full amount of $33,326 remains on
the balance sheet as accrued interest payable.

NOTE 5 -STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock

We have authorized the issuance of 10,000,000 shares of $0.0001 par value common stock as of December
31, 2018, of which 7,100,000 were designated as Series A Voting Common Stock and 2,900,000 were
designated as Series B Nonvoting Common Stock. As of December 31, 2018, 7,100,000 and 0 shares of
Series A Voting Common Stock and Series B Nonvoting Common Stock were issued and outstanding,
respectively.

During the period ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued the Parent 7,100,000 shares of Series A
Voting Common Stock at $0.0001 per share.

The Series B Nonvoting common stockholders do not have voting rights nor board election rights.

NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company’s Parent and its officers have provided good and services to the Company, for total expenses
of $71,500 for the year ended December 31, 2018.

The company paid parent license fees in the amount of $275.476 of licensing fees accrued on the sale of
the Company’s product under a licensing agreement that calls for 45% of net sales to be paid to the Parent.

The Company has advanced funds to the Parent Company since inception totaling $311,366, and the Parent
has paid certain expenses on the Company’s behalf totaling $22,097. The net balance due from the Parent
to the Company as of December 31, 2018 was $265,674.43. This balance bears interest at 5% per annum
and is considered payable on demand, though it was classified as a long-term asset as repayment is not
expected within the next year. Interest income from these advances totaled $7,332 for the period ended
December 31, 2018.

The Company pays a monthly management fee of $23,763 to two officers of its Parent for certain
administrative functions performed by the officers to the Company. Management fees recognized for the
period ended December 31, 2018 were $285,186.

See accompanying Independent Accountant’s Review Report
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NOTE 7: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606). This
ASU supersedes the previous revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605—Revenue Recognition
and most industry-specific guidance throughout the ASC. The core principle within this ASU is to recognize
revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration expected to be received for those goods or services.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, which
deferred the effective date for ASU 2014-09 by one year to fiscal years beginning after December 15,2017,
while providing the option to early adopt for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016. Transition
methods under ASU 2014-09 must be through either (i) retrospective application to each prior reporting
period presented, or (ii) retrospective application with a cumulative effect adjustment at the date of initial
application. We are continuing to evaluate the impact of this new standard on our financial reporting and
disclosures, including but not limited to a review of accounting policies, internal controls and processes.
We have adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2018.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows" (Topic 230). This ASU is
intended to reduce diversity in practice in how certain transactions are classified in the statement of cash
flows. This ASU is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2017. We do not believe the adoption of ASU 2016-15 will have a material impact on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards could
have a material effect on the accompanying balance sheet. As new accounting pronouncements are issued,
the Company will adopt those that are applicable under the circumstances.

NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS

We are currently not involved with or know of any pending or threatening litigation against the Company
or any of its officers.

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events that occurred after December 31, 2018 through April 29,

2019, the issuance date of these financial statements. There have been no other events or transactions
during this time which would have a material effect on these financial statements.

See accompanying Independent Accountant’s Review Report
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artesian
CPA, LLC

To the Stockholders of
Keezel, Inc.
Lewes, Delaware

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Keezel, Inc., which comprise the balance
sheet as of December 31, 2017, and the related statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity (deficit), and cash flows for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Amernca. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements., We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Artesian CPA, LLC

1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 80202

p: 877.968.3330 f: 720.634.0905

info@ArtesianCPA.com | www.ArtesianCPA.com



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Keezel, Inc. as of December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As described in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company has
not generated profits since inception, has sustained a net loss of $149,938 and has negative operating
cash flows for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017, has an accumulated
deficit of $149,938 as of December 31, 2017, has current liabilities in exceeding current assets by
$87,654 as of December 31, 2017, and lacks liquidity with just $150 of cash as of December 31, 2017.
These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 3. The
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this
uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Secwa (B L
Denver, Colorado
November 2, 2018

Artesian CPA, LL.C
1624 Market Street, Suite 202 | Denver, CO 80202
p: 877.968.3330 f: 720.634.0905
info@ArtesianCPA.com | www.ArtesianCPA.com



KEEZEL, INC.

BALANCE SHEET
As of December 31, 2017
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 150
Escrow balance 26,744
Prepaid expense 1,816
Accrued interest receivable, related party 2,668
Total Current Assets 31,378
Non-Current Assets:
Advance to related party 289,269
Total Non-Current Assets 289,269
TOTALASSETS $ 320=()47

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 17,858
Accrued expenses 74,043
Deferred revenue 27,131
Total Current Liabilities 119,032

Long-Term Liabilities:
Accrued interest payable 5,576
Convertible notes payable, net of discount 345,267
Total Long-Term Liabilities 350,843
Total Liabilities 469,875

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit):
Series A Voting Common Stock, $0.0001 par, 7,100,000
shares authorized, 7,100,000 shares issued and
outstanding, as of December 31, 2017 710
Series B Nonvoting Common Stock, $0.0001 par,
2,900,000 shares authorized, 0 shares issued
and outstanding, as of December 31, 2017 -
Additional paid-in capital -
Accumulated deficit (149,938)
Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit) (149,228)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) § 320,647

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
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KEEZEL, INC.
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

Net revenues b 36,627
Costs of net revenues (19,042)
Gross profit 17,585

Operating Expenses:

General & administrative 94 428
Sales & marketing 66,290
Total Operating Expenses 160,718
Loss from operations (143,133)

Other Income/ (Expense):

Interest expense (9,473)
Interest income - related party 2,668
Total Other Income/(Expense) (6,805)

Provision for income taxes -

Net Loss $ (149,938)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
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KEEZEL, INC.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Loss §  (149,938)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Amortization of debt discount 3,897
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in accrued interest receivable (2,668)
(Increase)/Decrease in prepaid expense (1,816)
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable 17,858
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued expenses 74,043
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred revenue 27,131
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued interest payable 5,576
Net Cash Used In Operating Activities g25,91 7)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Advances to related party, net (289,269)
Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (289,269)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock 710
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes payable 314,626
Net Cash Provided By Financing Activities 315,336

Net Change In Cash 150
Cash at Beginning of Period -
Cash at End of Period $ 150

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest $ -
Cash paid for income taxes $ -

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
financial statements.
8-



KEEZEL, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Keezel, Inc. (the “Company™), is a corporation organized April 27, 2017 under the laws of Delaware.
The Company was formed to manage sales and operations in the United States of America market as
a subsidiary of its Dutch parent, AvocadoNinja, B.V., based in Amsterdam, Netherlands (the
“Parent”), selling the Parent’s Keezel brand of cybersecurity products and services.

All of the Company’s intellectual property and its board of directors are located in the Netherlands.

As of December 31, 2017, the Company had not commenced planned full-scale principal operations
nor generated significant revenue. The Company’s activities since inception have consisted of
formation activities, preparations to raise capital, and efforts to commence US sales. Once the
Company commences its planned full-scale principal operations, it will incur significant additional
expenses. The Company is dependent upon additional capital resources for the commencement of its
planned principal operations and is subject to significant risks and uncertainties; including failing to
secure funding to operationalize the Company’s planned operations or failing to profitably operate
the business.

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Company has adopted the calendar year as its
basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilites at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Concentration of Cash Balance

The Company considers all highly liquid securities with an original maturity of less than three months
to be cash equivalents. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts, at times,
may exceed federally insured limits. The Company’s escrow balance as of December 31, 2017 was
$26,744, and represents funds held by the Company’s escrow agent on its behalf related to the ongoing
fundraising efforts discussed in Note 4.

‘air Value Measurements

Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) guidance specifies a hierarchy of valuation
techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs
reflect market assumptions. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEEZEL, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

active markets for identcal assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of
financial instruments whose value is based on quoted market prices such as exchange-traded
instruments and listed equities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirecdy (e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, or quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are notactive).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Financial instruments are considered Level
3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or similar
techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.

The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets approximate their fair value.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts. Accounts receivable are
periodically evaluated for collectability based on past credit history with clients and other factors.
Provisions for losses on accounts receivable are determined on the basis of loss experience, known
and inherent risk in the account balance, and current economic conditions. As of December 31, 2017,
the Company carried no receivables.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased. Depreciation is recorded for property
and equipment using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of assets. The Company
reviews the recoverability of all long-lived assets, including the related useful lives, whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a long-lived asset might not be
recoverable. As of December 31, 2017, the Company held no property or equipment.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when: (1) persuasive evidence exists of an arrangement with the
customer reflecting the terms and conditions under which products or services will be provided;
(2) delivery has occurred or services have been provided; (3) the fee is fixed or determinable; and
(4) collection is reasonably assured. Revenues are recognized upon fulfilment of sales and recorded
to deferred revenues for the period from payment until fulfilment is complete. Deferred revenues are
recorded for orders received and paid, but not yet shipped, and amounted to $27,131 as of December
31,2017.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
-10-



KEEZEL, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

Costs of Net Revenues

The primary component of costs of net revenues is the licensing fee between the Company and its
Parent discussed in Note 6.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the hability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC 740, Income
Taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences
between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in
effect during the years in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when
it is unlikely that the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

The Company assesses its income tax positions and record tax benefits for all years subject to
examination based upon our evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740-10, for those tax positions where there is a greater than
50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, the Company’s policy is to record the largest
amount of tax benefit that is more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing
authority that has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where
there is less than 50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized
in the financial statements. The Company has evaluated its income tax positions and has determined
that it does not have any uncertain tax positions.

The Company accounts for income taxes with the recognition of estimated income taxes payable or
refundable on income tax returns for the current period and for the estimated future tax effect
attributable to temporary differences and carryforwards. Measurement of deferred income items is
based on enacted tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deferred income tax assets
being reduced by available tax benefits not expected to be realized in the immediate future. The
Company estimates it has net operating loss carryforwards of $140,465 as of December 31, 2017. The
Company pays taxes at an effective blended rate of 28% and has used this effective rate to derive a
net deferred tax asset of $41,958 as of December 31, 2017, resulung from its net operating loss
carryforward and other book-to-tax differences. Due to uncertainty as to the Company’s ability o
generate sufficient taxable income in the future to utilize the net operating loss carryforwards before
they begin to expire in 2037, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance to reduce the net
deferred tax asset to zero.

The Company files U.S. federal and state income tax returns. All tax periods since inception remain
open to examination by the taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject.

‘orcign C

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, (“USD”), which is the reporting
currency and the functional currency of the Company. In accordance with ASC 830, Foreign Currency
Matters, foreign denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated to their USD equivalents
using foreign exchange rates which prevailed at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilites are translated at exchange rate prevailing at the transaction date. Revenue and expenses were
translated at the prevailing rate of exchange at the date of the transaction. Related translation

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEEZEL, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

adjustments are reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity/ (deficit), whereas gains or
losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are included in results of operations. For the period
ended December 31, 2017, the Company determined the effects of foreign currency translations were
not material and therefore did not recognize any such gains or losses.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis, which
contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business.
The Company has not generated profits since inception, has sustained a net loss of $149938 and has
negative operating cash flows for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017,
has an accumulated deficit of $149,938 as of December 31, 2017, has current habilities in exceeding
current assets by $87,654 as of December 31, 2017, and lacks liquidity with just $150 of cash as of
December 31, 2017. The Company’s ability to continue as a going concem in the next twelve months
is dependent upon its ability to obtain capital financing from investors sufficient to meet current and
future obligations and deploy such capital to produce profitable operating results. No assurance can
be given that the Company will be successful in these efforts. These factors, among others, raise
substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time. The balance sheet does not include any adjustments relating to the recoverability and
classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification of liabilities that might be
necessary should the Company be unable to continue as a going concern. '

NOTE 4: CONVERTIBLE NOTES PAYABLE

In 2017, the Company entered into a series of convertible notes agreements for total principal of
$368,095. The instruments mature in 24 months and bear at 5% interest per annum.

If and upon a qualified equity financing where the Company raises gross proceeds of $4,000,000 or
greater, the instruments’ face value along with accrued interest will automatically convert to Class B
common stock at a discount of 2(0% to the pricing in the triggering round or the price per share
implied by a pre-money valuation of $4,000,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization.

If and upon a corporate transaction involving the Company’s parent, the convertible notes payable
become immediately due and payable, together with interest calculated at 10% calculated as if the
convertible notes were outstanding for 2 years.

If at maturity neither of the aforementioned conversions have occurred, the Company may elect to
convert the convertible notes payable, and any unpaid accrued interest, into the number of shares
determined by dividing the then outstanding principal and interest by the price per share implied by a
pre-money valuation of $4,000,000 on the Company’s fully diluted capitalization.

As of December 31, 2017, the convertible notes payable had not been converted and remained
outstanding in the full prncipal amounts. The Company analyzed the note for beneficial conversion
features, and concluded the conversion terms did not constitute beneficial conversion features or were

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEEZEL, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

contingent upon future unknown events, and therefore no beneficial conversion featre discount has
been booked as of December 31, 2017,

Loan placement fees of $26,725 were incurred in connection with the issuance of these notes and
were recorded as discounts to the notes. The Company is amortizing such fees to interest expense
over a 24-month period. $3,897 of such costs were amortized to interest expense during the year

ended December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2017, $368,095, of convertible notes were issued and outstanding, which are
presented net of unamortized loan expenses of $22,828, for a carrying balance of $345267. Interest
expense of $5,576 was recognized during the year ended December 31, 2017 on such notes, of which
none was paid so the full amount remains on the balance sheet as accrued interest payable.

NOTE 5: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

The Company has authonzed 10,000,000 shares of $0.0001 par value common stock as of December
31,2017, of which 7,100,000 were designated as Series A Voting Common Stock and 2,900,000 were
designated as Series B Nonvoting Common Stock. As of December 31, 2017, 7,100,000 and 0 shares
of Series A Voting Common Stock and Series B Nonvoting Common Stock were issued and
outstanding, respectively.

During the period ended December 31, 2017, the Company issued the Parent 7,100,000 shares of
Series A Voting Common Stock at $0.0001 per share.

The Series B Nonvoting common stockholders do not have voting rights nor board election rights.
NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s Parent and its officers have provided good and services to the Company, for total
expenses of $67,682 for the year ended December 31,2017, Included in that amount was $16,482 of
licensing fees accrued on the sale of the Company’s product under a licensing agreement that calls for
45% of net sales to be paid to the Parent.

The Company has advanced funds to the Parent Company since inception totaling $311,366, and the
Parent has paid certain expenses on the Company’s behalf totaling $22,097. The net balance due from
the Parent to the Company as of December 31, 2017 was $289,269. This balance bears interest at 5%
per annum and is considered payable on demand, though it was classified as a long-term asset as
repayment is not expected within the next year. Interest income from these advances totaled $2,668
for the period ended December 31, 2017, all of which was accrued as unpaid as of December 31, 2017.

The Company pays a monthly management fee of $6,400 to two officers of its Parent for certain
administrative functions performed by the officers to the Company. Management fees recognized for
the period ended December 31, 2017 were $51,200, which remained unpaid and outstanding as of
December 31, 2017,

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEEZEL, INC.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

NOTE 7: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (Topic
6006). This ASU supersedes the previous revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605—
Revenue Recognition and most industry-specific guidance throughout the ASC. The core principle
within this ASU is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received for those goods or
services.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-14, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, which
deferred the effective date for ASU 2014-09 by one year to fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2017, while providing the option to early adopt for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016.
Transition methods under ASU 2014-09 must be through either (i) retrospective application to each
prior reporting period presented, or (ii) retrospective application with a cumulative effect adjustment
at the date of initial application. We are continuing to evaluate the impact of this new standard on our
financial reporting and disclosures, including but not limited o a review of accounting policies,
internal controls and processes. We have adopted the new standard effective January 1, 2018,

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, "Statement of Cash Flows" (Topic 230). This ASU is
intended to reduce diversity in practice in how certain transactions are classified in the statement of
cash flows. This ASU is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2017. We do not believe the adoption of ASU 2016-15 will have a material impact on
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards
could have a material effect on the accompanying balance sheet. As new accounting pronouncements
are issued, the Company will adopt those that are applicable under the circumstances.

NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES, AND CONCENTRATIONS

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actions in the ordinary
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but the
Company does not anticipate that the final outcome, if any, arising out of any such matter will have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Convertible Notes

The Company had a Regulation Crowdfunding round open as of December 31, 2017, as discussed in
Note 4. This offering remained open in 2018 with the same terms as the 2017 issuances. As of the

issuance of these financial statements, total committed funds under the Regulation Crowdfunding
offering were §767,508, inclusive of the $368,095 issued in 2017 and discussed in Note 4.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEEZEL, INC.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2017 and for the period from April 27, 2017 (inception) to December 31, 2017

Management’s Evaluation

Management has evaluated all subsequent events through November 2, 2018, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. There are no additional matenial events requiring disclosure or
adjustment to the financial statements.

See Independent Auditor’s Report
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[See attached]



VIDEO TRANSCRIPT (Exhibit D)
Hi!
Meet Keezel, online freedom for all your devices everywhere.

Keezel protects your privacy and security.

Now, free Wi-Fi is everywhere but that doesn’t mean it is safe.In coffee shops, bars, and hotels
other people can see what apps or websites you use and bad guys can steal your accounts and
private data. Even at work and at home you are not safe. Your colleagues, roommates and
internet service provider can see what you are doing online. Keezel protects your online
activities. Secure all your Wi-Fi devices at the same time and make sure others no longer see
your apps or websites.

It is none of their business.

Keezel lets you watch things on the internet that are blocked. You know many websites and TV
shows can only be watched in certain countries. Or the stream of your sports game is blocking a
region. Keezel fixes this. It works at home and when travelling.Simply visit the websites you like
and enjoy your favorite programs all the time.

So, how it does it work? Keezel connects to Wi-Fi networks like one at your favorite coffee shop
but at the same time the Keezel provides a separate secure Wi-Fi network just for you. Sounds
complicated? Well, good news, Keezel is super simple to use. One button then control it from
your smartphone, laptop, or tablet. You don’t have to install a thing and it works with all your
Wi-Fi devices. Oh! And Keezel has a great battery life. It might even save the day when your
phone runs out of power.

Together, let’s make Keezel available to the world. Tell all your friends about it. Let’s help
everyone enjoy their online freedom.



STARTENGINE SUBSCRIPTION PROCESS (Exhibit E)

Platform Compensation

e As compensation for the services provided by StartEngine Capital, the issuer is required to
pay to StartEngine Capital a fee consisting of a 6-8% (six to eight percent) commission
based on the dollar amount of securities sold in the Offering and paid upon disbursement
of funds from escrow at the time of a closing. The commission is paid in cash and in
securities of the Issuer identical to those offered to the public in the Offering at the sole
discretion of StartEngine Capital. Additionally, the issuer must reimburse certain
expenses related to the Offering. The securities issued to StartEngine Capital, if any, will
be of the same class and have the same terms, conditions and rights as the securities being
offered and sold by the issuer on StartEngine Capital’s website.

Inf ion Regarding Leneth of Time of Offeri

e Investment Cancellations: Investors will have up to 48 hours prior to the end of the
offering period to change their minds and cancel their investment commitments for any
reason. Once within 48 hours of ending, investors will not be able to cancel for any reason,
even if they make a commitment during this period.

e Material Changes: Material changes to an offering include but are not limited to: A
change in minimum offering amount, change in security price, change in management,
material change to financial information, etc. If an issuer makes a material change to the
offering terms or other information disclosed, including a change to the offering deadline,
investors will be given five business days to reconfirm their investment commitment. If
investors do not reconfirm, their investment will be cancelled and the funds will be
returned.

Hitting The T. Goal Early & O bscrinti

e StartEngine Capital will notify investors by email when the target offering amount has hit
25%, 50% and 100% of the funding goal. If the issuer hits its goal early, and the minimum
offering period of 21 days has been met, the issuer can create a new target deadline at
least 5 business days out. Investors will be notified of the new target deadline via email
and will then have the opportunity to cancel up to 48 hours before new deadline.

e Oversubscriptions: We require all issuers to accept oversubscriptions. This may not be
possible if: 1) it vaults an issuer into a different category for financial statement
requirements (and they do not have the requisite financial statements); or 2) they reach
$1.07M in investments. In the event of an oversubscription, shares will be allocated at the
discretion of the issuer.

e [f the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target offering
amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, investment
commitments will be cancelled and committed funds will be returned.

e IfaStartEngine issuer reaches its target offering amount prior to the deadline, it may
conduct an initial closing of the offering early if they provide notice of the new offering
deadline at least five business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material
change that would require an extension of the offering and reconfirmation of the
investment commitment). StartEngine will notify investors when the issuer meets its



target offering amount. Thereafter, the issuer may conduct additional closings until the
offering deadline.

Minimum and Maximum Investment Amounts

e Inorder to invest, to commit to an investment or to communicate on our platform, users
must open an account on StartEngine Capital and provide certain personal and non-
personal information including information related to income, net worth, and other
investments.

e Investor Limitations: Investors are limited in how much they can invest on all
crowdfunding offerings during any 12-month period. The limitation on how much they
can invest depends on their net worth (excluding the value of their primary residence) and
annual income. If either their annual income or net worth is less than $107,000, then
during any 12-month period, they can invest up to the greater of either $2,200 or 5% of the
lesser of their annual income or net worth. If both their annual income and net worth are
equal to or more than $107,000, then during any 12-month period, they can invest up to
10% of annual income or net worth, whichever is less, but their investments cannot exceed
$107,000.



SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT TEMPLATE (EXHIBIT F)



CONVERTIBLE NOTE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This Convertible Note Subscription Agreement (this “Agreement”) is dated as of the date set forth on the
signature page below and is between Keezel, Inc., a Delaware company (the “Company”), and the purchaser identified
on the signature page to this Agreement (the “Purchaser”). The parties agree as follows:

1. INVESTMENT.

The Company has authorized the offer and sale of unsecured subordinated convertible promissory notes, in
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (each, a “Note" and, collectively, the “Notes") in one or more closings
to certain purchasers acceptable to the Company (the "Offering"), which offering is being conducted through the
StartEngine Capital, LLC ("Portal”) online equity crowdfunding platform (the “Platform™). The minimum principal amount
of each Note issued in the Offering is $250 and the maximum principal amount of each Note issued in the Offering is
$100.000. The minimum aggregate principal amount of all the Notes issued in the Offering is $10,000 (the “Minimum
Offering Amount”) and the maximum aggregate principal amount of all Notes issued in the Offering is $1,070,000 (the
“Maximum Offering Amount”). The Notes will have the rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions set forth in the
Note and, pursuant to the terms thereof, are convertible into shares of the Company's Series B Nonvoting Common
Stock. The rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of the Company's Series B Nonvoting Common Stock are set
forth in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation dated April 27, 2017, as may be amended, restated, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time, including, but not limited to, that certain Certificate of Amendment dated July 18,
2017 (the “Charter”).

Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, induding the Agreement Terms set forth in Exhibit B and a
Note in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A (i) the Purchaser shall purchase at the Closing and the Company shall sell
to the Purchaser at the Closing a Note with a principal amount equal to the amount set forth on the signature page to this
Agreement (the “Purchaser Subscription"). (ii) the Company shall issue such Note to the Purchaser at the Offering
Deadline (as defined below) and (iii) the Purchaser and the Company agree to be bound by the obligations set forth in this
Agreement and to grant to the other parfies hereto the rights set forth in this Agreement.

2, WDFUNDING OFFERING DISCL RE.

The Notes being offered and sold in the Offering are being offered and sold pursuant to Section 4(a)(6) of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act"), and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder
(“Regulation Crowdfunding"). Prior to the Offering Commencement Date, the Company filed (or caused to be filed) with
the Securities Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) a Form C Offering Statement for the Offering (together with
any amendments thereto or progress updates filed in connection therewith, collectively, the “Offering Statement”). This
Agreement is entered into as part of a series of similar agreements (collectively with this Agreement, the "Agreements”)
pursuant to which the Company will sell and issue Notes to the persons listed on the signature pages of such Agreements
(collectively with the Purchaser, the “Purchasers”).

3. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement (including the Exhibits and Schedules hereto) constitutes the full and entire
understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, and any other written or oral
agreement relating to the subject matter hereof existing between the parties is expressly canceled.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date last executed by the parties
below.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]



%%NAME_OF _ISSUER%%
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE

The undersigned, desiring to purchase Convertible Notes of %%NAME_OF ISSUER%%, by executing this
signature page, hereby executes, adopts and agrees to all terms, conditions and representations of the
Subscription Agreement.

(a) The aggregate purchase price for the Convertible %%VESTING_ AMOUNT%%
Notes the undersigned hereby irrevocably subscribes for is:

(b) The Securities being subscribed for will be owned
by, and should be recorded on the Company's books as
held in the name of:

%%SUBSCRIBER_DETAILS_WITH_TAX_ID%%

%%SUBSCRIBER_SIGNATURE%%

Date

This Subscription is %%NAME_OF ISSUER%%
accepted By:

on %%TODAY%%. %%ISSUER_SIGNATURE%%

[CONVERTIBLE NOTE FOLLOWS]

EXHIBIT A

THIS NOTE AND THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “ACT"), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN
STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED
OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE
SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER
THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATION OTHERWISE COMPLIES WITH
THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.

THIS NOTE AND THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY ARE SUBJECT TO (A) RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFERABILITY AND RESALE, INCLUDING A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL IN FAVOR OF THE COMPANY
AND A LOCK-UP PERIOD IN THE EVENT OF A PUBLIC OFFERING AND (B) A REPURCHASE RIGHT IN
FAVOR OF THE COMPANY, EACH AS SET FORTH IN A SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT, A COPY OF WHICH



MAY BE OBTAINED AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES.

KEEZEL. INC.
ECURED SUBORDINATED VERTIBLE PROMI RY NOTE

Issue Date: %%TODAY%%

$%%VESTING_AMOUNT%%
Newport
Beach, California

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Keezel, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company’), promises to pay to
%%VESTING_AS%% (the “Investor’), or its permitted assigns, in lawful money of the United States of America the
principal sum of $%%VESTING_AMOUNT%%, or such lesser amount as shall equal the outstanding principal
amount hereof, together with simple interest on the unpaid principal balance accrued from the date of this
Unsecured Subordinated Convertible Promissory Note (the “Note") or as otherwise provided for herein. This Note
is one of the “Notes" issued pursuant to the Convertible Note Subscription Agreement dated as of %%TODAY%%
(the “Subscription Agreement’). Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning set forth
in the Subscription Agreement.

The following is a statement of the rights of the Investor and the conditions to which this Note is subject, and
to which the Investor, by the acceptance of this Note, agrees:

1. Interest. Except as set forth in Section 3, simple interest on the unpaid principal balance of this Note shall
accrue at a rate equal to %%INTEREST_RATE%% % per annum, computed on the basis of the actual
number of days elapsed and a year of 365 days. Interest that accrues pursuant to this Section 1 shall be
payable at the Maturity Date (as defined below) in cash or, in the Company's discretion, in shares of
Series B Nonvoting Common Stock of the Company at a conversion price equal to the quotient resulting
from dividing (i) $8,000,000 by (ii) the number of shares of outstanding common stock of the Company
immediately prior to the interest payment date (but excluding any shares issued with respect to the
Notes).

2. Maturity Date. Subject to the conversion provisions of Section 5, the unpaid Principal Amount and
accrued interest shall be due and payable in full onthe earlier of (a) the date that is two years after the
Issue Date of this Note and (b) the consummation of a Parent Liquidation Event (the “Maturity Date").

3. Parent Liquidation Event. Notwithstanding Section 1 hereof, in the event of a Parent Liquidation Event,
the unpaid principal amount of this Note, together with simple interest accrued at 10% per annum and
computed as if the Note was outstanding for two years with such interest rate, shall become immediately
payable by the Company to the Investor. Any repayment required under this Section 3 shall be made by
the Company in cash.

4. Prepayment. Prepayment of the Principal Amount, together with accrued interest, may be made at any
time without penalty.

5. Conversion.

a. Company Conversion Option. On the Maturity Date, the Company shall have the option to convert
the outstanding Principal Amount and unpaid accrued interest on this Note into shares of the
Company's Series B Nonvoting Common Stock. The per share conversion price for a conversion
under this Section 5(a) shall be equal to the quotient resulting from dividing (i) $8,000,000 by (ii) the
number of shares of outstanding common stock of the Company immediately prior to such
conversion (but excluding any shares issued with respect to the Notes). After such conversion, this
Note shall be deemed repaid in full.

b. Conversion upon Qualified Equity Financing. Change of Control or IPO. Upon a Qualified Equity



Financing, a Change of Control or an IPO, the outstanding Principal Amount, together with all
accrued but unpaid interest thereon due under this Note, shall be automatically converted,
immediately prior to the closing of the transaction, into shares of the Company's Series B
Nonvoting Common Stock. The per share conversion price for a conversion upon a Qualified
Equity Financing shall be equal to the lesser of (i) the conversion price calculated pursuant to
Section 5(a) and (ii) eighty percent (80%) of the price per share of the equity securities sold inthe
Qualified Equity Financing. The per share conversion price for a conversion upon a Change of
Control or an IPO shall be equal to eighty percent (80%) of the price per share (x) received by the
holders of the Series A Voting Common Stock (whether in the form of cash, securities or other
property) in the Change of Control or (y) offered to the public in the IPO, as applicable. After such
conversion, this Note shall be deemed repaid in full. The issuance of such shares upon conversion
of this Note shall be upon and subject to substantially the same terms and conditions applicable to
the Qualified Equity Financing. Investor agrees to execute all necessary documents in connection
with the conversion of this Note and the Qualified Equity Financing, including, but not limited to, a
definitive stock purchase agreement (including, without limitation, a 180-day lock-up agreement in
connection with an IPO).

i. For the purpose of this Note, “Qualified Equity Financing”means a transaction or series
of related transactions whereby the Company issues equity securities and receives, in
exchange therefore, gross aggregate cash proceeds in excess of $8,000,000 at a pre-
money valuation of at least $8,000,000 (excluding amounts attributable to the conversion
of the Notes); provided that the sale of the Company's securities to its employees,
directors, and consultants, or the issuance of securities upon exercise or conversion of
securities outstanding prior to the date hereof, or the issuance of securities in connection
with leases, commercial bank loans or equipment financing, shall not constitute a
Qualified Equity Financing.

ii. For purposes of this Note, the term “Change of Control' means (a) the acquisition of the
Company by another entity by means of any transaction (including, without limitation, any
reorganization, merger, reverse merger or consolidation), or (b) a sale of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company; provided, however, that the term “Change
of Control” does not include (i) any transaction in which the stockholders of the Company
prior to the transaction hold more than 50% of the voting securities of the surviving or
acquiring entity immediately after the transaction (other than in a reverse merger between
the Company and a public shell company), (ii) any transaction for the sole purpose of
changing the Company's domicile or (iii) the sale of the Company’s equity securities in
any private equity financing, the principal purpose of which is to raise funds for the
continued operation of the Company.

iii. For purposes of this Note, the term “/IPO"” means the Company'’s first firm commitment
underwritten public offering of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to a registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

c. Mechanics of Conversion. Upon conversion of this Note, Investor shall surrender the original of this
Note, duly endorsed, at the principal offices of the Company or any transfer agent for the Company
(or a notice to the effect that the original Note has been lost, stolen or destroyed and an agreement
acceptable to the Company whereby the holder agrees to indemnify the Company from any loss
incurred by it in connection with this Note); provided, however, that upon conversion pursuant to this
Section 3, this Note shall be deemed converted and of no further force and effect, whether or not it
is delivered for cancellation as set forth in this sentence. At its expense, the Company will, as soon
as practicable thereafter, issue and deliver to Holder a certificate for the number of shares of equity
securities, as applicable, to which Investor is entitled upon such conversion, and any other
securities and property to which Investor is entitled upon such conversion under the terms of this
Note, including cash or a check payable to Investor for any amounts payable as described in
Section 3(d) below. Upon conversion in full of this Note into such shares of equity securities
pursuant to this Section 3, the Note shall be cancelled and deemed repaid in full, and the Company
will be forever released from all of its obligations and liabilities under this Note except for the
payment obligation required pursuant to Section 3(d) below.

d. Fractional Shares: Interest: Effect of Conversion. No fractional shares shall be issued upon
conversion of this Note. In lieu of the Company issuing any fractional shares to the Investor upon
the conversion of this Note, the Company shall pay to the Investor an amount equal to the product
obtained by multiplying (i) the applicable conversion price then in effect at the time of such



conversion by (ii) the fraction of a share not issued pursuant to the previous sentence.

6. Replacement of Note. On receipt of evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company of the loss, theft,

destruction, or mutilation of this Note and (a) in the case of loss, theft, or destruction, on delivery of an
indemnity agreement reasonably satisfactory in form and substance to the Company or (b) in the case of
mutilation, on surrender and cancellation of this Note, the Company shall execute and deliver, in lieu of
this Note, a new note of like tenor and amount. Investor shall reimburse the Company for all reasonable
expenses incidental to replacement of this Note.

7. No Rights as Stockholder. Nothing contained in this Note shall be construed as conferring upon the

Investor hereof the right to vote or to consent or to receive notice as a stockholder of the Company or any
other matters or any rights whatsoever as a stockholder of the Company. No dividends or interest shall
be payable or accrued in respect of this Note or the interest represented hereby or the Note hereunder
until, and only to the extent that, this Note shall have been converted pursuant to the provisions of

Section 3 hereof.

8. Not Transferable. This Note and the rights hereunder are not transferable and/or assignable, in

whole orin part, by Investor except as permitted by the Subscription Agreement.

9. Compli ith Securities Laws.

a. Investor, by acceptance of this Note, acknowledges that this Note and the shares of capital stock
that may be issuable upon conversion hereof (the “Conversion Shares”) are being acquired solely
for Investor's own account and not as a nominee for any other party, and for investment, and that
Investor will not offer, sell, or otherwise dispose of this Note or any Conversion Shares except under
circumstances that will not result in a violation of the Act, or any state securities laws. Upon
conversion of this Note, Investor shall, if reasonably requested by the Company, confirm in writing,
in a form reasonably satisfactory to the Company, that the Conversion Shares so acquired are
being acquired solely for Investor's own account and not as a nominee for any other party, for
investment, and not with a view toward distribution or resale.

b. Investor understands that neither this Note nor the Conversion Shares have been registered under
the Act, and therefore they may not be sold, assigned or transferred unless (i) a registration
statement under the Act is in effect with respect thereto or (ii) an exemption from registration is
found to be available to the satisfaction of the Company.

c. Investor further acknowledges and agrees that the stock certificates evidencing the Conversion
Shares shall bear a restrictive legend, substantially in the following form (or substantially similar
legend), in addition to such other restrictive legends as are required or deemed advisable under the
provisions of this Note, the Subscription Agreement and any applicable law or any other agreement
to which Investor is a party:

“THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS

AMENDED (THE “ACT"), AND MAY NOT BE SOLD, OFFERED FOR SALE, PLEDGED OR
HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT PURSUANT TO A REGISTRATION STATEMENT IN EFFECT WITH
RESPECT TO THE SECURITIES UNDER THE ACT OR COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 144 OR
REGULATION S, AS APPLICABLE, PROMULGATED UNDER THE ACT OR ANOTHER
AVAILABLE EXEMPTION THEREFROM, OR UNLESS THE COMPANY HAS RECEIVED AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL, REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY AND ITS
COUNSEL, THAT SUCH REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED."

10. Waiver and Amendment. Any provision of this Note may be amended, waived or modified upon the

11.

written consent of Company and a Majority in Interest. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event an
amendment, waiver, or modification of this Note adversely affects the rights of the Investor in a manner
different than the other Investors other than by virtue of the amount of principal and interest then
outstanding owed to such Investors, then the written consent of the Investor shall also be required to
enforce such amendment, waiver or modification.

Notices. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in manner provided for in the
Subscription Agreement.



12. Usury. Inthe event any interest paid on this Note is deemed to be in excess of the then legal maximum
rate, then that portion of the interest payment representing an amount in excess of the then legal
maximum rate shall be deemed a payment of principal and applied against the principal of this Note.

13. Waivers. Company hereby waives notice of default, presentment or demand for payment, protest or
notice of nonpayment or dishonor and all other notices or demands relative to this instrument.

14. Lock-Up Agreement. Investor hereby agrees by acceptance hereof (and each transferee of this Note
agrees by acceptance thereof) that it will not, without the prior written consent of the managing
underwriter, during the period commencing on the effective date of a registration statement relating to the
Company's IPO (such registration statement, the "Registration Statement') and ending on the date
specified by the Company and the managing underwriter (such period not to exceed one hundred eighty
(180) days): (a) lend, offer, pledge, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase
any option or contract to sell, grant any option, right or wamrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or
dispose of, directly or indirectly, any Conversion Shares or any securities convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for the Conversion Shares (including the Notes) held immediately prior to the effectiveness
of the Registration Statement for such IPO, or (b) enter into any swap or other arangement that transfers
to another, in whole or in part, any of the economic consequences of ownership of the Conversion Shares
or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for the Conversion Shares (including the
Notes), whether any such transaction described in clause (a) or (b) above is to be settled by delivery of
Conversion Shares or other securities (including the Note), in cash or otherwise. The underwriters in
connection with the Company's IPO are intended third party beneficiaries of this Section 12 and shall
have the right, power and authority to enforce the provisions hereof as though they were a party hereto.

The Investor by acceptance of this Note (and each transferee of this Note by acceptance thereof) further
agrees 1o execute such agreements as may be reasonably requested by the underwriters in the
Company’s IPO that are consistent with this Section 12 or that are necessaty to give further effect thereto.

In order to enforce the foregoing covenant, the Company may impose stop transfer instructions with
respect to the Conversion Shares or any other securities owned by the Investor (and any transferee of this
Note) until the end of such period. Investor hereby agrees and confirms its understanding by acceptance
hereof (and each transferee of this Note agrees and confirms its understanding by acceptance thereof)
that the certificates evidencing the Conversion Shares shall bear the following legend (or substantially
similar legend):

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND THE HOLDER OF THE
SECURITIES (OR SUCH HOLDER'S PREDECESSOR IN INTEREST). SUCH AGREEMENT,
AMONG OTHER THINGS, SUBJECTS THESE SECURITIES TO CERTAIN LOCK-UP
OBLIGATIONS UNDER CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES. THE COMPANY WILL, UPON WRITTEN
REQUEST, FURNISH A COPY OF SUCH AGREEMENT TO THE HOLDER HEREOF WITHOUT
CHARGE."

15. Additional Transfer Restrictions. Investor hereby agrees by acceptance hereof (and each transferee of
this Note agrees by acceptance thereof), that all Conversion Shares acquired upon conversion of this
Note are subject to the transfer restrictions, repurchase rights and rights of first refusal as set forth in
Section 5 of the Subscription Agreement. Investor hereby agrees and confirms its understanding by
acceptance hereof (and each transferee of this Note agrees and confirms its understanding by
acceptance thereof) that the certificates evidencing the Conversion Shares shall bear the following legend
(or substantially similar legend):

“THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN
REPURCHASE RIGHTS AND RIGHTS OF FIRST REFUSAL GRANTED TO THE COMPANY
PURSUANT TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
COMPANY AND THE HOLDER OF THE SECURITIES (OR SUCH HOLDER'S PREDECESSOR IN
INTEREST) AND ACCORDINGLY MAY NOT BE SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRED,
ENCUMBERED, OR IN ANY MANNER DISPOSED OF EXCEPT IN CONFORMITY WITH THE
TERMS OF SUCH AGREEMENT. THE COMPANY WILL, UPON WRITTEN REQUEST, FURNISH
A COPY OF SUCH AGREEMENT TO THE HOLDER HEREOF WITHOUT CHARGE.”

16. Headings. The descriptive headings of the several sections and paragraphs of this Note are inserted for



17.

18.

convenience only and do not constitute a part of this Note.

verning Law: Jurisdiction: Venue: ice of P . This Note shall be govemed by and construed
under the laws of the State of California as applied to agreements among California residents entered into
and to be performed entirely within California, without regard to its conflict of law principles. The parties
hereby submit to the personal jurisdiction of, and agree that any legal proceeding with respect to or
arising under this Note, shall be brought solely and exclusively in the state courts of the State of Califomia
for the County of Orange and the United States District Court for the Central District of California, if such
court has subject matter jurisdiction.

Entire Agreement. This Note and the Subscription Agreement, including the exhibits attached thereto,
constitute the full and entire understanding and agreement between the parties with regard to the subjects
hereof and thereof. By Investor's acceptance hereof, the Investor and the Company agree that no party
shall be liable or bound to any other party in any manner with regard to the subjects hereof or thereof by
any warranties, representations or covenants except as specifically set forth herein or therein.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

%%NAME_OF_ISSUER%%:

By: _ %%ISSUER_SIGNATURE%%_____
Name: %%NAME_OF _ISSUER%%

Title: %%ISSUER_TITLE%%

Investor:

By: %%INVESTOR_SIGNATURES%%
Name: %%VESTING_AS%%

Title: %%INVESTOR_TITLE%%

Email: %%VESTING_AS_EMAIL%%

[Remainder of page left blank]

1. SUBSCRIPTION: CANCELLATIONS: ACCEPTANCE OF THE PURCHASE AND SALE OF

CONVERTIBLE NOTES.

1.1 Subscription



1.1.1  Subscription. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Purchaser
subscribes for and agrees to purchase, at the applicable Closing, a Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchaser
Subscripion. Such subscription shall be deemed to be accepted by the Company only when this Agreement is
countersigned on the Company's behalf in accordance with Section 1.3. No investor may subscribe for a Note in the
Offering after September __, 2017 or such later date as determined by the Company (the “Offering Deadline”).

1.1.2 Purchase Price. Prior to the later of (A) the Offering Deadline and (B)

5:00 p.m. (Los Angeles time) on the fith (5") Business Day following the date of the Purchaser's signature to
this Agreement set forth on the signature page below (the “Funding Deadline”). the

Purchaser shall deliver to the Company an amount in cash equal to the Purchaser Subscription (the “Purchase Price")
by wire transfer or other electronic funds transfer in accordance with the Company's instructions as provided on
the Platform. Funds for the Purchase Price will be held in an escrow account established by the Company through the
Platform (the “Escrow Account”) and released to the Company at the discretion of the Company in accordance with
Section 1.4, and subject to the terms and conditions of the escrow agreement related to the Escrow Account (the

‘Escrow Agreement’) and this Agreement.

1.1.3  Maximum Offering Amount. The Company may accept subscriptions from the
Purchasers for Notes so long as the aggregate principal amount of all the Notes issued by the Company in the Offering do
not exceed the Maximum Offering Amount. All such subscriptions shall be accepted by the Company through the

Platform in the Company's sole discretion.

1.2 Cancellation.

1.21  Cancellation Deadline. Purchaser may cancel this subscription at any time and for any
reason up until September __, 2017 (the “Cancellation Deadline"). Except as set forth in Sections 1.2.2 and 1.4.3,
Purchaser agrees that after the Cancellation Deadline this subscription shall be irrevocable by Purchaser and
shall survive the death or disability of Purchaser.

1.22 Material Change If there is a material change to the terms of the Offering orto
the information provided by the Company in connection therewith, the Company shall direct the Portal to send to
the Purchaser notice (A) of such material change and (B) that Purchaser's subscription will be cancelled unless
Purchaser reconfirms such subscription within five (5) Business Days of Purchaser's receipt of such notice (the
“Reconfirmation Period"). If Purchaser fails to reconfirm Purchaser's subscription within the Reconfirmation
Period, (Y) such subscription wil be cancelled automatically and (Z) the Company shall direct Portal to (I) send to
Purchaser, within five (5) Business Days after the Reconfirmation Period, a notification that such subscription was
cancelled, the reason for such cancellation and the refund amount that Purchaser is expected to receive, and (ll) refund
of such subscription to Purchaser. For the purposes of this Agreement “Business Day" means any day except Saturday,
Sunday or any other day on which commercial banks located in Orange County, California are authorized or required by
applicable law to be closed for business.

1.23 Cancelled Subscriptions. If Purchaser's subscription is cancelled, such subscription
shall be refunded to Purchaser without deduction for any fee, commission or expense, and without accrued interest with
respect to any money received.

13 Acceptance. Purchaser acknowledges that the Company has the right to accept or reject this
subscription, in whole or in part, for any reason, and that this subscription shall be deemed to be accepted by the
Company only when this Agreement is countersigned on the Company's behalf and delivered to Purchaser. Upon
rejection of the subscription under this Agreement for any reason, such subscription shall be refunded to Purchaser
without deduction for any fee, commission or expense, and without accrued interest with respect to any money received,
and this Agreement shall be deemed to be null and void and of no further force or effect.



1.4 Closings.

1.41 Closing. Subjectto this Section 1.4, closings of the sale and purchase of the Notes
pursuant to the Agreements (each, a “Closing" and, together, the “Closings”) shall take place through the Platform from
time to time until five (5) Business Days after the Offering Deadine (the “Final Closing Date"). subject to the terms
hereof. As used herein, the term “Closing” shall apply to an Early Closing (as defined below) and any Closing that may
occur on the Final Closing Date, if applicable, and the term “Closing Date" shall apply to Closings on any Early Closing
Date or the Final Closing Date.

1.4.2 Closing Conditions. Subjectto Section 1.4.3, the Company may not consummate
Closings until the Company has received (i) prior fo the Offering Deadline, executed subscriptions from Purchasers for
Notes having an aggregate principal amount of at least the Minimum Offering Amount and (i) prior to the Funding
Deadline, cleared funds into the Escrow Account on account of aggregate subscriptions from the Purchasers in amount
equal to at least the Minimum Offering Amount.

1.43 Early Closings. The Company may effect one or more Closings (each, an “Early
Closing") prior to the Offering Deadline (each such earlier Closing Date, the “Early Closing Date”) if all of the following
conditions are safisfied: (i) the conditions set forth in Section 1.4.2 have been satisfied:; (ii) the Early Closing Date is at
least 21 days after the Offering Commencement Date; (iii) Portal provides notice (the “Early Closing Notice") to the
Purchasers of (A) the Early Closing Date, (B) the right of investors in the Offering to cancel their subscriptions at any time
and for any reason up until 48 hours prior to the Early Closing Date, and (C) whether the Company will continue to
accept subscriptions under the Offering during such 48-hour period and (iv) the Early Closing Date is scheduled for
and occurs at least five (5) Business Days after the Early Closing Notice is provided by Portal.

1.5 No Closing. If (i) at the Offering Deadline, the Company fails to receive subscriptions
from Purchasers for Notes having an aggregate principal amount of at least the Minimum Offering Amount; (i) at the
Funding Deadline, the Company fails to receive in cleared funds, or is not accepting, subscriptions from Purchasers for
Notes having an aggregate principal of at least the Minimum Offering Amount; or (iii) the Company terminates the Offering
or is otherwise unable to effect the Closing pursuant to this Agreement, (1) Purchaser's subscription will be cancelled
automatically and (2) the Portal will, within five (5) Business Days thereafter, (A) send to Purchaser a nofification of such
cancellation, the reason for such cancellation and the refund amount that Purchaser is expected to receive, and (B) direct
the refund of such subscription to Purchaser without deduction for any fee, commission or expense, and without
accrued interest with respect to any money received, and without accrued interest with respect to any money received.

2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY. The Company hereby represents and
warrants to the Purchaser that the following representations are true and complete as of the Closing Date, except as
otherwise indicated.

21 izati in P r lification. The Company s a
corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware and has all

corporate power and corporate authority required (a) to carry on its business as presently conducted and as presently
proposed to be conducted and (b) to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement.

2.2 Subsidiaries. The Company does not currently own or control, directly orindirectly, any
interest in any other corporation, partnership, trust, joint venture, limited liabiity company, association, or other
business entity. The Company is not a participant in any joint venture, partnership or similar arrangement.

2.3 Authorization. All corporate action has been taken, or will be taken prior to the Closing, on the
part of the Board and stockholders that is necessary for the authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement by the
Company and the performance by the Company of the obligations to be performed by the Company as of the date hereof



under this Agreement. This Agreement, when executed and delivered by the Company, shall constitute the valid and
legally binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms except (a)
as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance, or other laws of
general application relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally, or (b) as limited by laws relating
to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief, or other equitable remedies.

2.4 Crowdfunding Representations. The Company is conducting the Offering exclusively on the
Platform. The Company is not conducting any concurrent offering of the Company's securities in reliance on
Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act other than the Offering. The aggregate amount of the Company's securities sold
by the Company in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act during the 12-month period preceding the offer or
sale of any of the Notes in the Offering (including any Notes authorized to be offered and sold in the Offering) does not
exceed $1,070,000. The Company is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

3.  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF THE PURCHASER. The
Purchaser hereby represents and warrants to the Company, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing Date, as follows.

3.1  Authorization. The Purchaser has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement. This
Agreement, when executed and delivered by the Purchaser, will constitute a valid and legally binding obligation of the
Purchaser, enforceable in accordance with their terms, except (a) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, moratorium, fraudulent conveyance, and any other laws of general application relating to or
affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights generally, or (b) the effect of rules of law governing the availability of
equitable remedies.

3.2 Purchase Entirely for Own Account. This Agreement is made with the Purchaser in
reliance upon the Purchaser's representation to the Company, which by the Purchaser's execution of this Agreement, the

Purchaser hereby confirms, that the Note, the shares of Series B Nonvoting Common Stock issuable upon conversion of
the Note or in payment of interest on the Note, and any securities of the Company issued as a dividend or other
distribution with respect thereto or in exchange therefor or in replacement thereof (collectively, the “Securities”) to be
acquired by the Purchaser will be acquired for investment for the Purchaser's own account, not as a nominee or agent,
and not with a view to the resale or distribution of any part thereof, and that the Purchaser has no present intention of
selling, granting any participation in, or otherwise distributing the same. By executing this Agreement, the Purchaser
further represents that the Purchaser does not presently have any contract, undertaking, agreement or arrangement
with any person to sell, transfer or grant participations to such person or to any third person, with respect to any of the
Securities. The Purchaser has not been formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Securities.

3.3 Disclosure of Information. The Purchaser acknowledges that the Purchaser has reviewed and
understands the contents of the Offering Statement and the education materials posted on the Platform. The Purchaser
has had an opportunity to discuss the Company’s business, management, financial affairs and the terms and conditions of
the Offering and the Securities with the Company's management. Nothing in this Section 3.3, including the foregoing
sentence, limits or modifies the representations and warranties of the Company in Section 2 of this Agreement or the right
of the Purchaser to rely thereon. The Purchaser has had an opportunity to obtain the advice of counsel prior to executing
this Agreement and fully understands all provisions of this Agreement, the Charter and the Bylaws of the Company.

3.4 Own Advisors. Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser is not relying on any statements or
representations of the Company or its respective agents, for legal, financial, or tax advice with respect to this
investment or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. Purchaser has reviewed with Purchaser's own tax
advisors the U.S. federal, state, local and foreign tax consequences of this investment and the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement. With respect to such matters, Purchaser is relying solely on such advisors and not
on any statements or representations of the Company, or any of its respective agents, whether written or oral.
Purchaser understands that it (and not the Company) shall be responsible for Purchaser's own tax liability that
may arnse as a result of this investment or the fransactions contemplated by this Agreement.



3.5  Restricted Securities and Limited Resale. Purchaser is aware that the Securities have not
been registered under the Securities Act, and that the Securities are subject to restrictions on transfer under the Securities
Act. Purchaser also understands that the Securities are being offered and sold pursuant to an exemption from
registration contained in the Securities Act based in part upon Purchaser's representations contained in this Agreement.

Purchaser understands that the Securities must be held indefinitely unless they are sold in compliance with the applicable
transfer restrictions, subsequently registered under the Securities Act or an exemption from such registration is available.

3.6 Purchaser Information. Allinformation provided by the Purchaser through the Platform
(induding, without limitation, with respect to the Purchaser's (and the Purchaser's spouse, if applicable) annual income,
net worth and other investments pursuant to Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act) is complete, true and accurate in all
respects.

3.7 Investment Risk. Purchaser understands and acknowledges that (a) the Company has
a limited financial and operating history and that an investment in the Company is highly speculative and involves
substantial risks, (b) the entire amount of Purchaser’s investment may be lost, (¢) Purchaser is in a financial condition to
bear the loss of Purchaser's investment, (d) there are restrictions on Purchaser's ability to cancel Purchaser's subscription
hereunder and obtain a retum of Purchaser's investment, (e) it may be difficult for Purchaser to resell the Securities and
(f) investing in the Securities involves risk, and Purchaser should not invest any funds in the Offering unless Purchaser
can afford to lose the entire amount of Purchaser's investment.

3.8 Residence. The Purchaser resides in the state or province identified in the address of the
Purchaser set forth on the signature page hereto.

4. ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS OF THE PURCHASER.

41 Indemnification. Purchaser hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company,
Portal, and any of their respective officers, directors, controlling persons, equity holders, agents and employees
(collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”), who is or may be a party or is or may be threatened to be made a party to any
threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, by
reason of or arising from any misrepresentation or misstatement of facts or omission to represent or state facts made by
Purchaser to the Company or Portal (or any agent or representative of any of them), or omitted by Purchaser, against any
losses, damages, liabilities, penalties or expenses (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid
in setlement) actually and reasonably incurred by any Indemnified Party in connection with such action, suit or
proceeding.

5.1.1  Each person owning of record shares of the Securities or any assignee of record of
Securities (each such person, a “Holder") shall not make any Transfer of all or any portion of any Securities unless
all of the following are satisfied: (a) such Transfer occurs after the one year anniversary of the date that the Purchaser
purchased the Securities pursuant to this Agreement, except for Permitted Transfers (as defined in Section 5.1.2
below); (b) the Holder has complied with the provisions of Section 5.2, except for Permitted Transfers: (c) the
transferee thereof has agreed in writing for the benefit of the Company to take and hold such Securities subject to, and to
be bound by, the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; (d) the Holder shall have given prior written notice
(which may be via email or other electronic means, at the discretion of the Company) to the Company of such Holder's
intention to make such Transfer and shall have fumished the Company with a detailed description of the manner and
circumstances of the proposed Transfer, and, if requested by the Company, such Holder shall have fumished the



Company, at its expense, with an opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory to the Company; and (e) such Holder and
transferee have complied with any other transfer procedures as may be required by the Company's transfer agent. For
the purpose of Section 5.1 through 5.6 of this Agreement, “Transfer" or “Transferred” means any direct or indirect
transfer, sale, assignment, gift, intervivos transfer, pledge, hypothecation, mortgage or other disposition or encumbrance
(whether voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law), including derivative or similar transactions or arrangements
whereby a portion or all of the economic interest in, or risk of loss or opportunity for gain with respect to, the Securities is
transferred or shifted to another person or entity, the offer to make a sale, transfer or other disposition, and each option,
agreement, arrangement or understanding, whether or not in writing, to effect any of the foregoing.

5.1.2 The restrictions of clause (a) of Section 5.1.1 and Section 5.2 shall not apply to any of the
following (each, a “Permitted Transfer'): (a) a Transfer without consideration to such Holder's Family Members, to a
trust controlled by such Holder or to a trust created for the benefit of such Holder or such Holder's Family Members; (b)
Transfers approved by the Company (in its discrefion) to persons or entities that are “accredited investors" (as
defined in Rule 501 promulgated under the Securities Act): (c) Transfers to the Company: or (d) Transfers as part of
an offering registered with the Commission. ‘Family Members" means a child, stepchild, grandchild, parent,
stepparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-
law, or sister-in-law of a Holder, and shall include adoptive relationships (and for the purposes hereof, “spousal
equivalent” means a cohabitant occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that of a spouse).

5.1.3 Any Transfer not made in compliance with this Agreement shall be null and void ab inifio,
shall not be recorded on the books of the Company or its transfer agent and shall not be recognized by the Company. If
any Holder becomes obligated to sell any Securities to the Company pursuant to Section 5.2 and fails to deliver such
Securities in accordance with Section 5.2, the Company may, at its option, in addition to all other remedies it may have,
send to such Holder the purchase price for such Securities as specified in the Transfer Notice (defined below) and
transfer to the name of the Company on the Company's books any certificates, instruments, or book entry representing
the Securities to be sold.

5.1.4 Each certificate (if any) or book-entry notation representing the Securities shall
bear the following legends (or substantially similar legends) and other restrictive legends required under applicable law:

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933,

AS AMENDED (THE “ACT"), OR UNDER THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES.

THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED,
PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT AS PERMITTED UNDER THE ACT AND
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS PURSUANT TO REGISTRATION OR AN
EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY REQUIRE AN
OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE ISSUER THAT SUCH
OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATION OTHERWISE COMPLIES
WITH THE ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.

THESE SECURITIES ARE SUBJECT TO (A) RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFERABILITY AND
RESALE, INCLUDING A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL IN FAVOR OF THE COMPANY AND
A LOCK-UP PERIOD IN THE EVENT OF A PUBLIC OFFERING AND (B) A REPURCHASE
RIGHT IN FAVOR OF THE COMPANY, EACH AS SET FORTH IN A SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT, A COPY OF WHICH MAY BE OBTAINED AT THE PRINCIPAL OFFICE OF
THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES.

5.2 Right of First Refusal. In the event that a Holder proposes to Transfer any Securities to any
person, entity or organization (the “Transferee"), other than a Pemmitted Transfer, the Company shall have the right of
first refusal set forth in this Section 5.2 with respect to such Securities (the “Right of First Refusal’). If a Holder desires
to Transfer any Securities, such Holder shall deliver written notice thereof (‘Transfer Notice") (which may be via email or
other electronic means, at the discretion of the Company) to the Company describing fully the proposed Transfer,



including the number of Securities proposed to be Transferred (the “Offered Securities”). the proposed transfer price, the
name and address of the proposed Transferee and proof satisfactory to the Company that the proposed Transfer will not
violate any applicable federal or state securities laws. The Transfer Notice shall constitute a binding commitment of
such Holder to the Transfer of the Offered Securities. The Company shall have the right to purchase all, but not less than
all, of the Offered Securities on the terms described in the Transfer Notice by delivery to such Holder of a notice of
exercse of the Right of First Refusal within thirty (30) days after the date when the Transfer Notice was delivered to the
Company. The Company's rights under this Section 5.2 shall be freely assignable by the Company, in whole or in pan.
The Right of First Refusal shall terminate upon the first to occur of (and shall not be applicable to): (a) a Deemed
Liquidation Event (as defined below) and (b) the closing of a firm commitment underwritten public offering of the
Company's Common Stock pursuant to the Securities Act. For purposes of this Agreement, each of the following events
is a "Deemed Liquidation Event": (a) a merger or consolidation in which (i) the Company is a constituent party or (i) a
subsidiary of the Company is a constituent party and the Company issues shares of its capital stock pursuant to such
merger or consolidation, except any such merger or consolidation involving the Company or a subsidiary in which the
shares of capital stock of the Company outstanding immediately prior to such merger or consolidation continue to
represent, or are converted into or exchanged for equity securities that represent, immediately following such merger or
consolidation, at least a majority, by voting power, of the equity securities of (1) the surviving or resulting party or (2) if the
surviving or resulting party is a wholly owned subsidiary of another party immediately following such merger or
consolidation, the parent of such surviving or resulting party; or (b) the sale, lease, fransfer, exclusive license or other
disposition, in a single transaction or series of related transactions, by the Company or any subsidiary of the Company of
all or substantially all the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole, or, if substantially all of the assets
of the Company and its subsidiaries taken as a whole are held by such subsidiary or subsidiaries, the sale or disposition
(whether by merger or otherwise) of one or more subsidiaries of the Company, except where such sale, lease, transfer or
other disposttion is to the Company or one or more wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

5.3  “Market Stand-Off” Agreement. To the extent requested by the Company or an underwriter of
securities of the Company, each Holder shall not sell or otherwise transfer or dispose of any Securities or other shares of
stock of the Company then owned by such Holder (other than to donees or partners of the Holder who agree to be
similarly bound) for up to 180 days following the effective date of any registration statement of the Company filed under
the Securities Act. For purposes of this Section 5.3, “Company” includes any wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
into which the Company merges or consolidates. The Company may place restrictive legends on the certfficates
representing the shares subject to this Section 5.3 and may impose stop transfer instructions with respect to the
Securities and such other shares of stock of each Holder (and the shares or securities of every other person subject to
the foregoing restriction) until the end of such period. Each Holder shall enter into any agreement reasonably required by
the underwriters to implement the foregoing within any reasonable timeframe so requested.

54 Drag Along Right. If a Deemed Liquidation Event is approved by each of (i) the holders of a
majority of the shares of Series A Voting Common Stock then-outstanding and (ii) the Board, then each Stockholder (as
defined below) shall vote (in person, by proxy or by action by written consent, as applicable) all shares of capital stock of
the Company now or hereafter directly or indirectly owned of record or beneficially by such Stockholder and entitled to
vote (collectively for purposes of Section 5.4 and Section 5.5, the “Shares") in favor of, and adopt, such Deemed
Liquidation Event and to execute and deliver all related documentation and take such other action in support of the
Deemed Liquidation Event as may reasonably be requested by the Company to carry out the terms and provision
of this Section 5.4, including executing and delivering instruments of conveyance and transfer, and any purchase
agreement, merger agreement, indemnity agreement, escrow agreement, consent, waiver, governmental filing, share
certificates duly endorsed for transfer (free and clear of impermissible liens, daims and encumbrances) and any similar or
related documents. “Stockholder” means each Holder and any transferee thereof.

5.5 Ex Al Right. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Stockholder need not comply
with Section 5.4 above in connection with any proposed transaction that would be a Deemed Liquidation Event (the

‘Proposed Sale’) unless:

(a) any representations and warranties to be made by the Stockholder in connection with the Proposed Sale are
limited to representations and warranties related to authority, ownership and the ability to convey title to



such Shares, including representations and warranties that (i) the Stockholder holds all right, title and
interest in and to the Shares the Stockholder purports to hold, free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances, (i) the obligations of the Stockholder in connection with the fransaction have been
duly authorized, if applicable, (iii) the documents to be entered into by the Stockholder have been duly
executed by the Stockholder and delivered to the acquirer and are enforceable against the Stockholder in
accordance with their respective terms and, (iv) neither the execution and delivery of documents to
be entered into in connection with the transaction, nor the performance of the Stockholder's
obligations thereunder, will cause a breach or violation of the terms of any agreement, law, or judgment,
order, or decree of any court or governmental agency;

(b) the Stockholder will not be liable for the inaccuracy of any representation or wamranty made by any other Person in
connection with the Proposed Sale, other than the Company (except to the extent that funds may be paid
out of an escrow established to cover breach of representations, wamranties, and covenants of the
Company as well as breach by any stockholder of any identical representations, warmanties and
covenants provided by all stockholders);

(c) the liability for indemnification, if any, of the Stockholder in the Proposed Sale and for the inaccuracy of any
representations and warranties made by the Company or its Stockholders in connection with such
Proposed Sale, is several and not joint with any other Person (except to the extent that funds may be paid
out of an escrow established to cover breach of representations, wamanties and covenants of the
Company as well as breach by any stockholder of any identical representations, warranties, and
covenants provided by all stockholders), and except as required to satisfy the liquidation preference of
preferred stock authorized and outstanding at such time, if any, is pro rata in proportion to, and does not
exceed, the amount of consideration paid to such Stockholder in connection with such Proposed Sale;
and

(d) liability will be limited to the Stockholder's applicable share (determined based on the respective proceeds
payable to each Stockholder in connection with the Proposed Sale) of a negotiated aggregate
indemnification amount that applies equally to all of the Company's stockholders but that in no event
exceeds the amount of consideration otherwise payable to the Stockholder in connection with the
Proposed Sale, except with respect o claims related to fraud by the Stockholder, the liability for which
need not be limited as to the Stockholder.

5.6 Repurchase Right. In the event of a Parent Liquidation Event (as defined below), the Company
shall, in its discretion and on five days writien notice (which may be provided electronically), have the right to purchase
any and all outstanding shares of Series B Nonvoting Common Stock from the current Holders thereof at a price, payable
in cash, equal to the fair market value of such shares determined by a nationally recognized accounting firm selected by
the Company. For the purposes hereof, “Parent Liquidation Event" means (a) the first firm commitment underwritten
public offering of AvocadoNinja, BV, an entity organized under the laws of the Netherlands (the “Parent”) pursuantto a
registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, (b) the acquisition of the Parent by another
entity by means of any transaction (including, without limitation, any reorganization, merger, reverse merger or
consolidation), or (c) a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Parent; provided, however, that the term “Parent
Liquidation Event’ does not include (i) any transaction in which the stockholders of the Parent prior to the transaction hold
more than 50% of the voting securities of the surviving or acquiring entity immediately after the transaction (other thanin a
reverse merger between the Parent and a public shell company), (ii) any transaction for the sole purpose of changing the
Parent's domicile or (iii) the sale of the Parent's equity securities in any private equity financing, the principal purpose of
which is to raise funds for the continued operation of the Parent.

6. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

6.1 Successors and Assigns. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit
of and be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties. Nothing in this Agreement, express or



implied, is intended to confer upon any party other than the parties to this Agreement or their respective
successors and assigns any rights, remedies, obligations, or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement, except as
expressly provided in this Agreement. No Stockholder may transfer any Securities unless each transferee agrees to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement.

6.2 Governing Law. This Agreement is govermned by the laws of the State of Delaware, regardless of
the laws that might otherwise govern under applicable principles of choice of law.

6.3  Counterparts: Facsimile orElectronic Signature. This Agreement may be executed and
delivered in two or more counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, but all of which together will constitute

one and the same instrument. A digital reproduction, portable document format (“.pdf") or other reproduction of this
Agreement may be executed by one or more parties hereto and delivered by such party by electronic signature (including
signature via DocuSign or similar services), electronic mail or any similar electronic transmission device pursuant to
which the signature of or on behalf of such party can be seen. Such execution and delivery shall be considered valid,
binding and effective for all purposes.

6.4 Titles and Subtitles. The titles and subtitles used in this Agreement are used for convenience
only and are not to be considered in construing or interpreting this Agreement.

6.5 Notices. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be given in writing and shall be via
electronic mail (or mailed by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid) addressed:

6.5.1 if to Purchaser, at Purchaser's electronic mail address (or mailing address) as
provided by Purchaser through the Platform and set forth in this Agreement, as may be updated in accordance
with the provisions hereof;

6.5.2 ifto any other holder of any Note or any shares of Series B Nonvoting Common Stock
issued upon conversion thereof, at such electronic mail address (or mailing address) as shown in the Company's records,
or, until any such holder so furnishes an electronic mail address and mailing address to the Company, then to and at the
address of the last holder of such shares for which the Company has contact information in its records; or

6.5.3 ifto the Company, to Keezel, Inc., 20377 SW Acacia Street, 2nd Floor, Newport Beach,
CA 92660 (or, if by malil, the Company’s principal executive offices), Attn: Chief Executive Officer, or at such other
address as the Company shall have furnished to the Purchasers.

With respect to any notice given by the Company under any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law
or the Charter or Bylaws, Purchaser agrees that such notice may be given by electronic mail.

Each such notice or other communication shall for all purposes of this Agreement be treated as effective or having been
given at the earlier of its receipt or 24 hours after the same has been sent by electronic mail (or, if sent by mail, at the
earlier of its receipt or 72 hours after the same has been deposited in a regularly maintained receptacle for the deposit
of the United States mail, addressed and mailed as aforesaid).

6.6 Attorneys’ Fees. |Ifanyaction atlaw or in equity (including arbitration) is necessary to
enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attomeys' fees, costs,
and necessary disbursements in addition to any other relief to which the party may be entitled. Each party shall pay all
costs and expenses that it incurs with respect to the negotiation, execution, delivery, and performance of the Agreement.



6.7 Amendments and Waivers. This Agreement may be amended or modified, and the obligations
of the Company and the rights of the Purchasers under this Agreement may be waived or terminated, only upon the
written consent of the Company and Purchasers holding a majority-in-interest of the aggregate outstanding principal
balance under the Notes (“Majority In Interest").

6.8 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this
Agreement will in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision.

6.9 Delays or Omissions. No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing
to any party under this Agreement, upon any breach or default of any other party under this Agreement, will impair any
such right, power or remedy of such non-breaching or non-defaulting party nor will it be construed to be a waiver of any
such breach or default, or an acquiescence therein, or of or in any similar breach or default thereafter occurring; nor will
any waiver of any single breach or default be deemed a waiver of any other breach or default theretofore or
thereafter occurring. Any waiver, permit, consent or approval of any kind or character on the part of any party of any
breach or default under this Agreement, or any waiver on the part of any party of any provisions or conditions of this
Agreement, must be in writing and shall be effective only to the extent spedifically set forth in such writing. All remedies,
either under this Agreement or by law or otherwise afforded to any party, are cumulative and not alternative.

6.10 Dispute Resolution. Each party (a) hereby irrevocably and unconditionally submits to the
personal jurisdiction of federal and state courts in Orange County, Califomia (the “Dispute Resolution Jurisdiction”)
for the purpose of any suit, action, or other proceeding arising out of or based upon this Agreement; (b) shall not
commence any suit, action or other proceeding arising out of or based upon this Agreement except in the Dispute
Resolution Jurisdiction; and (c) hereby waives, and shall not assert, by way of motion, as a defense, or otherwise, in any
such suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not subject to the personal jurisdiction of the Dispute Resolution
Jurisdiction, that its property is exempt or immune from attachment or execution, that the suit, action or proceeding is
brought in an inconvenient forum, that the venue of the suit, action or proceeding is improper or that this Agreement, or
the subject matter hereof and thereof may not be enforced in or by the Dispute Resolution Jurisdiction.

6.11  Specific Enforcement. It is agreed and understood that monetary damages would not adequately
compensate an injured party for the breach of this Agreement by any other pariy, that this Agreement shall be specifically
enforceable and that any breach or threatened breach of this Agreement shall be the proper subject of a temporary or
permanent injunction or restraining order. Further, each party hereto waives any claim or defense that there is an
adequate remedy at law for such breach or threatened breach.



